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For the year ended 31 December

HE12AMALER

Turnover
(Gross proft
Profit for the year
Eamings per share
Basic
Diluted

As at 31 December
MM2A318

Total assets
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total liabilities
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net current assets
Net assets

RAAHEEEERAT

“REFFR

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

RMB 000 RMB 000 Change RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ARBTT AEETT k4 NEETT NEBTT NEETT

B%E 3,254,109 2,667,216 +22.0% 1,915,965 1,415,852 1,034,340

e 434,751 402,863 +1.9% 342,697 220313 155,896

EREA 21,111 190,536 +24.8% 180,210 137,048 84,838
SREN

E-%\ RMBARM0.2TT  RMBAXH0.227 +22.7% RMBARM021T RMBAR®0.19T RMBAR¥0.121%

-&% RMBAR#0.2T%  RMBAXH0.2270 +22.7% RMBARM0217T RMBAR®0.19T RMBAR¥0.121

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

RMB 000  RMB 000 Change  RMB000  RMBO000  RMB 000

ARETFTE ARETT 22 ARKTT AREFT ARETT

BEE 2,645130 1,829,900 +44.6% 1,401,768 966,518 633,396

FRBEE 1,339,571 899,343 +48.9% 657,841 388,792 288,162

mEEE 1,305,559 930,557 +40.3% 743,927 577,726 345,234

aafk 1,569,379 968,251 +62.1% 645,454 399,867 342,488

nEEE 855,717 752,577 +13.7% 560,797 387,855 342,283

FRPER 713,662 215674 +230.9% 84,657 12,012 205

nYEEFE 449,842 177,980  +152.7% 183,130 189,871 2,951

BEFHE 1,075,751 861,649 +24.8% 756,314 566,651 290,908
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BI#iEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ANALFE 2007
Inventory turnover days FEAERY 7
Trade receivable FEWE 5508

turnover days JELEA=E 33
Trade payable N 558

turnover days FERY 43
Current ratio B E 1.5
Net debt to equity ratio FREBHRALE

(Note 1) (Hit1) 0.67
Return on equity (Note 2) RAE®RE (fi2) 25%

Note 1: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits over total equity.

Note 2: Based on the average of the total equity at the
beginning and ending of the financial year.

Remarks:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 12 July 2004 as an exempted company with limited
liabilities under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company became the holding
company of the Group on 21 November 2004 through
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) and the shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) since 9 December 2004 (“Listing Date”).
The Group has been treated as a continuing entity and
accordingly the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis that the Company was the
holding company of the Group since 1 January 2003,
rather than from 21 November 2004.

Accordingly, the results of the Group for the five years
ended 31 December 2007 have been prepared on the
basis of merger accounting as if the Group structure
immediately after the Reorganisation had been in
existence since 1 January 2003. This financial highlights
include the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
with effect from 1 January 2003 or since their respective
dates of incorporation, whichever is a shorter period.
The combined balance sheets as at 31 December 2003
are the combination of the balance sheets of all the
companies comprising the Group as at 31 December
2003. In the opinion of the directors (“Directors”) of the
Company, the resulting combined financial statements
give a more meaningful view of the results and the state
of the affairs of the Group as a whole.
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35 27 18 24
1.2 1.3 1.5 1.0
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Texhong Textile Group Limited (“Texhong Textile” or
the “Group”) (Stock code on the Stock Exchange: 2678)
is one of the largest cotton textile manufacturers in the
People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC”) and
is a leading textile enterprise focusing on manufacturing
high value-added core-spun cotton textile products. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of quality yarn, grey fabrics and garment
fabrics, especially high value-added core-spun yarn.
Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly and has over
1,800 customers in China and overseas, with its sales
network spanning across the PRC, Europe, South
Korea, Hong Kong and Bangladesh. Headquartered
in Shanghai, the Group is operating 11 efficient
manufacturing plants in China (within the Yangze River
Delta) and a production base in Vietnam with total
production capacity of over 600,000 spindles and 1,100
shuttleless looms.

Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock Code on the
Stock Exchange: 2678)

KA 4 A8 £ 75 PR 2 ]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

TRBES

Hong Tianzhu X%
Chairman /&

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present to our shareholders
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2007.

RESULTS

In line with the Group’s business expansion strategy,
the Group has continued to grow significantly and gain
market share in upstream high value-added core spun
cotton textile market in China. During the year, the
Group’s turnover increased by 22.0% to RMB3,254.1
million. Profit attributable to shareholders increased by
24.8% to RMB237.8 million. Earnings per share were
RMBO0.27 in 2007, compared to RMB0.22 in 2006.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend
of HKDO0.075 per share. Subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, total dividend per share for 2007 will amount to
HKDO0.075, the dividend for the year represents a 26%
payout of the total net profit for the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XE®HREE

2008 is a critical year for all players in China textile
industry. The market expected rapid appreciation of
RMB will further impact the cost competitiveness of
China textile and garment products in the international
market, it is believed that substantial part of the overseas
orders will be shifted to some developing countries in
Asia with rapid development in textile industry, such as
Pakistan and India. Sub-prime crisis has caused US
economy to the edge of recession and is likely to slow-
down the economic growth pace of EU. As a result, the
slow-down of the two major economies in the world has
almost declared a slow-down in global demand for textile
products. Continuous surge in raw materials, energy
and labour costs will further impact the profitability of
China textile players. The overall overcapacity in textile
industry will continue to cut the ever-slim profit margin of
those manufacturers with a simple commoditised product
structure. Tightening monetary policy in Mainland China
as a key macro-economic control is unlikely to be relaxed
in first half of 2008. All of above challenges will test the
overall competitiveness and risk management capability
of China textile players in 2008. We expect that some
of the industry players will be squeezed out in the near
future, which is likely to accelerate the consolidation
process of the fragmented textile industry of China
and, in the long run, enhance the competitiveness and
economies of scale of large-scaled textile enterprises.

Leveraging on its leading market position in core-spun
textile products, the Group has gained further market
share and customer base in Mainland China and in the
export market including Hong Kong, Japan, Turkey and
some of the ASEAN countries in 2007. We expect that
the Group’s differentiated-product marketing strategy will
continue to help in keeping current growth trend in sales
of core-spun textile products in Mainland China in 2008.

Following the establishment of the formal research and
development centre in Changzhou, the Group will devote
more resources to improve its competitive strengths
by introducing more innovative new core-spun textile
products like the core-spun yarn and fabrics with metallic
wires, polyester, polypropylene and nylon for enriching
the Group’s product structure and enhance the overall
profit margin of the Group’s products. At the same
time, the Group will devote more resources in 2008 on
brand name development and quality assurance of its
yarn and fabric products after the successful launch of
the international standard sales platform at Texhong
(China) Investment Co., Ltd., its regional headquarter in
Shanghai in July 2007.
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For the purpose of funding its business development
plans, the Group has arranged a three-year syndication
loan facility of US$80 million and a five-year debenture
of US$25 million in 2007. Part of the facilities was utilised
in 2007 and remaining part will be drawn in 2008 for the
Group’s capital expenditures. Following the successful
commencement of the commercialised production of
its Phase | project in Vietham, the Group will continue
to implement its Vietnam investment plan and expand
its upstream yarn production capacity in Vietnam for
supplying the Group’s customers in China as well as
developing textile markets in ASEAN countries. It is
expected that the Group’s total yarn production capacity
will be increased to about 740,000 spindles before the
end of 2008 by adding the Phase Il of 140,000 spindles
in Vietnam. By taking the advantages of the expected
substantially lower manufacturing cost in Vietnam as
compared to China, it is expected that the Group’s
overall average cost of its core-spun textile products
could be decreased in the near future after the planned
yarn production capacity of 210,000 spindles (Phase |
and Phase Il together) in Vietnam have been gradually
put into commercialised operations in 2008.

Looking ahead, China will remain as the Group’s core
market in 2008 and it is expected that sales in China
will attain outstanding growth with the Group’s current
differentiated-product strategy and the expected growing
demand of high-value added textile products as results
of the rapid growth in domestic consumption power in
recent years. Following the successful establishment
of the Phase | yarn production base in Vietnam, the
Group will form a sales and marketing team in Vietnam
in 2008 for exploring the market opportunities in Vietham
and other ASEAN countries. Being one of the most
competitive cotton textile manufacturers in China and
a leading supplier of core-spun textile products in the
world, the Directors are confident that in 2008, the
Group’s market position in China as well as in ASEAN
countries, will be further enhanced in line with its
business expansion plans.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their continuous
support. Also, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all our dedicated staff members for their valuable
contribution during the year.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong
3 April 2008

08

AEEABTHEERRRABIMESEES B
R-BELFLH—F 5 =FH8,0008%
TCIREER N — B A AFMN2,5008 % T
B - BOMEERER_TTLFRA &
BAEBN T \FIREUAENAEBHNE

ARFX - R8I —HIBREITR R
EEER - HK%H%%%E%ET&ﬁEtFﬁ&E”r%J

MR BN L ES DR RAERE
ﬁ@$%ﬁm¢ﬁ§ﬁ&%%%%%%m%o
FALEEN B E B2 75140,00018
WITMERLTERE - B ERAY BREREER
“EE N\FFREAIEEH740,0001E408E - 7B
HMBREERAERRRPEAR MR ==
T )\F210,000f8% e (F—RE A&
BETRELCEER  AEEBEMSTE - £
HIRBSE R E %?ﬁﬁﬁmTEZh
REL T o

RERNK  pER -_ZZN\FNHERAEED
LT o BEEIFREARERNEE DR
Bt S ESBERFIIFELEN - 5
I EAEEREGZ R ERKR - FREED
R SHE RIS ERSRENE R - HUESE
—HWREERMIBNEEE - NEEKR =
ZTN\FEEMEY —XHERTISHER
th > AFRAREEREGREBERAOEHK - &
ﬂKE@m¢lrﬁ S5 ) RN A an BLE R
EREERVCHEMAEEHL —  RES

R-ZTN\FAEEEPEFIREAEK
AEEBERTEIME—FF

$E1:.
IR A -
B -

RAERKREZSHE2RBER—BURNES
S‘Z%ﬁl%i/buﬁiu o BPERIRT - AN ARERELLH
BRHAEES HMEN B TRFAELMNE
BB -

HERB
E

%\
—EENFMA=H



BB LT

China textile industry experienced several challenges
in 2007. Restrictions posted by the EU and the US on
the export of China’s textile and garment products,
together with RMB appreciation and reduction in VAT
refund in the export of textile and garment products have
substantially reduced the growth magnitude of the export
sector of China textile industry, considerable amounts of
the textile and garment orders from the EU and the US
has been shifted from China to other countries in Asia. As
a result, we noted a slow down in growth of the export
sales of China’s textile and garment products. During the
year, China’s textile and garment export grew by 19.1%
to USD175.6 billion, a slow down of 6 percentage points,
as compared to the growth of 25.1% in 2006.

In addition, significant increase in cost of raw materials,
energy and labour and more stringent environmental
protection policy have declared a substantial increase in
cost and severe erosion in the overall competitiveness
of China textile players, there was a decline in the
profitability of the textile and garment manufacturing
sector, especially for those in the down stream of the
industry chain.

Despite of the unfavorable market environment, the
Group has gained further market recognition in the core-
spun textile sector in Mainland China as well as in the
overseas market. Sales volume of yarn and grey fabrics
increased by 23.6% and 22.8% to 94,887 tonnes and
113 million meters, respectively for the year ended 31
December 2007. Geographically, the Group’s yarn and
grey fabrics were mainly sold domestically in China with
major customers located in Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang
Province and Guangdong Province. Sales from domestic
market increased by 20.7% and reached a record high of
RMB2,842.1 million in 2007.

However, the unfavorable market environment of China
textile industry, especially in the export sector, which
have indirectly exerted certain pressure on the profit
margin of the Group’s products in 2007. The overall
gross profit margin of the Group’s products dropped by
1.7 percentage points to 13.4%, compared to 15.1% in
2006. The drop in gross profit margin was partly due
to decrease in average selling price of grey fabrics as
results of RMB appreciation and the reduction in VAT
refund and partly due to the substantial increase in
manufacturing cost , such as labour, energy and the cost
of raw materials including spandex, which is the second
major raw material of the Group, besides cotton.
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In response to the market changes, the Group
has reviewed its business development strategies
and reinforced/formulated following strategies and
implemented its business plans accordingly:

10

Further to its cooperation with Dow Chemical
since 2006, the Group has entered into a strategic
partnership agreement with Lenzing Fibers
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Lenzing Shanghai”) in
April 2007. Lenzing Shanghai is a wholly owned
subsidiary company of Lenzing AG-Austria, a world
leader in cellulose fiber technology, with an annual
production capacity of about 520,000 tonnes of
viscose, modal and tencel (lyocell) fibers. The
cooperation with these giant fiber suppliers helps
the Group in exploring high-end textile and garment
market in both Mainland China and overseas. As
a result, the Group has gained some prominent
customers in Japan and Europe and considerable
number of orders from overseas.

In addition, the Group has centralized its research
and development resources from its headquarter
and all PRC factories and established a formal
research and development centre in Changzhou
to enhance the Group’s research and new product
development capability and expand the Group’s
product variety. Following the successful launch of
metallic wire series textile products, the Group has
actively launched to the market core-spun textile
products with polyester, nylon and polypropylene in
2007.

The above actions have gained encouraging
response from the market in 2007. As a result,
sales of the Group’s non-spandex core-spun textile
products grew significantly by 61.8% to RMB749.0
million. The Directors believe that continuous and
actively launch of new and high value-added core-
spun textile products is an effective tool to enhance
the Group’s leading position in core-spun textile
products in the world. In addition, expanding our
product variety could effectively diversify the risk of
fluctuation in raw material cost in the long run.
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According to a research/study conducted by China
State Textile Industry Council, there was a general
increase in major costs of production (including
raw materials, energy and labour) for most of their
members in the second half of 2007, as compared
to that of 2006. Among those major costs, labour
costs surged by 14.0%. It is believed that, following
the introduction of New PRC Labour Contract Law
which became effective on 1 January 2008, labour
cost (including wages, welfare and other costs
related to labour force) is likely to climb further
in 2008. Continuously surging in costs becomes
one of the major challenges for China textile
manufacturers. During the year, the Group’s direct
labour costs surged by 31.7%, which was partly due
to the increase in number of employees and partly
due to the increase in the scale of salary and wages.
The Group has reviewed the production process of
all its subsidiary factories in China and studied the
current structure of labour force employed by each
subsidiary, and formulated following measures to
streamline production process and enhance labour
productivity:

. Further enhance its production process
automation policy and gradually reduce
headcount in each production line, gradually
transform the Group’s factories in China from
labour-intensive production facilities to capital/
technology intensive production facilities;

. Extend the Group’s performance-based
compensation scheme from senior
management level to plant supervisor of each
single production process to enhance labour
productivity and production efficiency; and

. Invest in employees by employing more
internal resources in providing regular formal
and on-the-job training, and assist each
employee in achieving self-development
personal and career goals.

The above measures have been the major human
resources task of the Group since the fourth quarter
of 2007. The Directors strongly believe that such
measures would help the Group in streamlining
its current structure of the labour force in each
subsidiary factory and enhancing the Group’s
labour productivity and production efficiency in the
near future.
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To overcome the continuous increasing pressure of
the manufacturing cost in China, the Group made
a strategic move in 2006 to shift its yarn capacity
expansion focus from low-cost acquisitions in China
to expansion in Vietnam. It is the Group’s plan to
expand its yarn production capacity in Vietnam to
approximately 350,000 spindles before the end of
2009, gradually by three phases. Phase | of the
Vietnam expansion plan comprises 70,000 spindles,
which has been put into commercialised production
in October 2007. Phase Il of about 140,000 spindles
is currently under construction, it is the Group’s plan
to put Phase Il into trial run operations in the second
quarter of 2008 and commence commercialised
production in the third quarter. Phase Il of about
another 140,000 spindles is planned to start
construction work immediately after the completion
of Phase Il and expected to start trial run in the first
half of 2009.

As the estimated overall average manufacturing
costs (including labour and energy costs) in
Vietnam would be substantially lower than the
Group’s current average manufacturing cost of
its 11 factories in Mainland China, the Directors
believe that, after putting into operations of the
production facilities on the completion of Phase |,
Il and Ill, the Group’s average manufacturing cost
could be gradually lowered, and the Group’s overall
gross margin of its products is likely to be lowered,
and the Group’s overall gross margin of its products
is likely to be improved in the near future.
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To achieve the Group’s principal development strategy
of becoming a leading vertically integrated manufacturer
of high value-added core-spun cotton textile products
in the international market, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement with Hong Kong Tin Hong
Industrial Limited (“Tin Hong Industrial”), a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an
executive Director, to acquire 37% equity interest of
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Textile”)
at a total consideration of RMB30 million in July 2007.
Nantong Textile is a dyeing and printing company
based in Nantong, Jiangsu Province. The Directors
believe that the acquisition helps the Group to enter
into the fabrics printing and dyeing market in Mainland
China. In addition, it also provided a low cost acquisition
opportunity of yarn spinning capacity to the Group as
Nantong Textile expanded its business operations
to yarn spinning in September 2007 and is currently
having a yarn spinning capacity of 60,000 spindles
in commercialised production. The acquisition was
completed in September 2007, and the Group’s share
of profit of the 37% interest in Nantong Textile for the
three months ended 31 December 2007 amounted to
approximately RMB3.2 million.
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The Group’s turnover comprises the sales of yarn, grey
fabrics and garment fabrics. Due to the strong domestic
demand for high value-added core-spun cotton textile
products, turnover of the Group grew significantly in
2007. Turnover of the Group by products are shown as

below.
Change
between
2007
and 2006
2007 2006 —EEF
—EBZTtFE  Y%oftotal —TTRFE % of total S
RMB’000 {548%8  RMB’000 fhyass —ZERF
AR¥FT BiInk ARMTFT EXvid Y
Yarn Wiz 2,126,443 65.4% 1,619,103 60.7% 31.3%
Grey fabrics b2l 989,880 30.4% 815,150 30.6% 21.4%
Garment fabrics g 119,972 3.7% 198,873 7.5% (39.7%)
Other textile products  Hth4h4k R 17,814 0.5% 34,090 1.2% (47.7%)
Total BB 3,254,109 100% 2,667,216 100% 22.0%

Yarn continued to be the Group’s top selling products
with sales amount increased by 31.3%, reaching a
record high sales value of RMB2,126.4 million in 2007.
Sales of grey fabrics also increased by 21.4%, benefited
from the growing demand of high value-added core-
spun cotton textile products. However, the continuous
appreciation in RMB and further reduction in export VAT
refund in 2007 impacted severely in the Group’s sales of
garment fabrics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Due to the rise in sales volume and the gain in market
share in the core-spun cotton textile products, gross
profit of the Group increased from RMB402.9 million to
RMB434.8 million, representing an increase of 7.9%
compared to last year.

Nevertheless, RMB appreciation and cut in VAT refund
have greatly impacted the export sector of the textile
and garment products, which indirectly led to a drop
in average selling prices of the Group’s products. In
addition, the rise in cotton and spandex prices, energy
and labour costs has exerted significant cost pressure
to the Group. The above pressures on selling prices and
manufacturing costs has resulted in a drop of gross profit
margin by 1.7 percentage points to 13.4% in 2007.

Cost structure

Cost of sales increased by 24.5% to RMB2,819.4
million. Besides the increase in production volume, the
rise in raw material costs (such as cotton, viscose and
spandex) and labour costs has also led to an increase in
the proportion of raw material and direct labour costs to
the Group’s total manufacturing costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s
selling and distribution costs amounted to RMB75.9
million, representing an increase of 17.0% compared
to that of last year. The increase was in line with the
increase in sales volume.

During the year, the Group’s general and administrative
expenses increased by 30.3% to RMB144.4 million,

REBE_ZTELFT_A=+—HIEFE &
SEZHERDHRAREF ETHMT7.0%EA
R #75,900,0007T © FHi&2 d i HE E LN
B o

REBRFRZ — MR RITH L EI30.3%
= AR %144,400,0007T @ (EARNEE L ¥4

which amounted to 4.4% of the Group’s turnover. The  4.4% - A F ERAN BN HEILIETH
increase was mainly due to the increase in employees NEIEAB -
in relation to administration and management of the new
production facilities in Vietnam.
2007 2006
—B2FtHF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEWEFT
Net cash generated from KRBTSR S F 5
operating activities 122,708 41,338
Net cash used in investing activities K& RS &35 (489,965) (232,948)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEBMERESFE
activities 426,985 71,525
Cash and cash equivalents at W+=—A=+—HH/
31 December ReRBFSEED 199,615 139,887

For the year ended 31 December 2007, net cash
generated from operating activities amounted to
RMB122.7 million. The increase in net cash inflow from
operating activities was mainly due to the increase in the
Group’s trade and bills payable as a result of utilisation
of the Group’s trade finance banking facilities. The net
cash used in investing activities amounted to RMB490.0
million, which was mainly used for the payment of
machinery and other capital expenditures of the Phase |
of the Group’s new production base in Vietham. During
the year under review, the net cash inflow from financing
activities amounted to RMB427.0 million, representing
the net increase in bank borrowings, including the partial
drawdown of a 3-year syndication loan agreement of
US$80 million entered by the Company from a bank
syndicate with ABN AMRO Bank and Citibank as lead
banks. In addition, the Group issued a 5-year debenture
of US$25 million to Deutsche Bank in 2007.
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As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s bank and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) amounted to
RMB210.4 million (as at 31 December 2006: RMB154.3
million).

As a result of business expansion in 2007, the Group’s
inventories and trade and bills receivables increased
substantially by RMB201.2 million and RMB137.4 million
to RMB651.9 million and RMB364.8 million, respectively
(as at 31 December 2006: RMB450.7 million and
RMB227.5 million). The inventory turnover days and
trade receivable turnover days were 71 days and 33
days respectively, compared to 58 days and 27 days
in 2006. The increase in inventory turnover days was
partly due to an increase in the inventory level of cotton
in December 2007 for the new production facilities in
Vietnam, which has just commenced commercialised
production in October 2007, and partly due the increase
of strategic reserve of cotton for the production use in
2008.

To cater for capital expenditure requirement as a result of
the Group’s business expansion in Vietnam, the Group’s
long-term bank borrowings increased by RMB498.1
million to RMB702.6 million as at 31 December 2007.
Short-term bank borrowings was reduced by RMB83.3
million to RMB225.3 million as a result of substantial
utilisation of trade finance facilities granted by various
commercial banks in 2007.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s financial ratios
were as follows:

Current ratio B R
Debt to equity ratio B (BRI R

Net debt to equity ratio

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s total bank
borrowings amounted to RMB927.8 million. Among
which, RMB226.5 million (24.4%) were denominated
in Renminbi and RMB701.3 million (75.6%) were
denominated in United States dollars. These loans borne
interest at interest rates ranging from 6.1% to 7.2% per
annum (2006: 3.0% to 8.0%).

BEFREERL R
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The Group has successfully reduced the proportion of
short-term loan to the total debt level from 60.1% to
24.3% in 2007. In June 2007, the Group entered into a
facility agreement with a syndicate of banks for a 3-year
loan facility up to principal amount of US$80 million.
Among which, approximately US$55 million has been
drawn by the Group in 2007. In addition, the Group
issued a 5-year debenture of US$25 million in 2007.
The proceeds from the syndication loan drawn and the
debenture were mainly used for repayment of bank loans
of the Group’s various operating subsidiaries in Mainland
China and for the payment of machinery and other
capital expenditure of the Group’s Vietnam project.

Of the total bank borrowings of RMB927.8 million,
RMB31.5 million were secured by the followings:

(i) pledge of the Group’s certain land use rights with a
net book amount of approximately RMB4.7 million as
at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB32.2 million);

(i) pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with a net book amount of approximately RMB46.0
million (2006: RMB17.8 million); and

(iii) floating charges over the Group’s inventories with
a net book amount of RMB14.6 million (2006:
RMB60.2 million).

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China and
Vietnam. Most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are dominated in RMB, USD and Vietnam
Dong. Foreign exchange risk also arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular
review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.
The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is mainly
attributable to its bank borrowings denominated in USD.
As the Group’s management considers the possibility
of the depreciation of RMB in the coming year is low,
the management does not expect there will be any
significant foreign exchange risk associated with the
Group’s borrowing. As a result, the Group did not use
any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
risk arising from the Group’s borrowings.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant
foreign currencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007, the capital
expenditure of the Group amounted to RMB502.2
million (2006: RMB233.2 million). It mainly comprises
of additions of land use rights and property, plant
and equipment for the newly constructed factories in
Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had contingent
liabilities of RMB21.9 million (as at 31 December
2006: RMB21.9 million). Such amount represented
government grants obtained from the Management
Committee of Taizhou Economic Development Zone
in connection with the Group’s purchase of a piece of
land in Taizhou, Jiangsu Province, China. The Directors
and the management of the Group anticipate that no
material liabilities will arise form the aforementioned
contingencies.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a total
workforce of 14,952 (as at 31 December 2006:
12,567), of whom 13,580 were located throughout our
11 manufacturing plants in China, 176 were based in
regional headquarter in Shanghai, 1,192 were located at
the Group’s new production base in Vietnam and 4 were
based in Hong Kong. New employees were recruited
to cater for the Group’s business expansion during the
year. The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration
schemes. In addition, discretionary bonuses and share
options may also be granted to eligible staff based
on individual and Group’s performance. The Group is
committed to nurturing a learning and sharing culture
in the organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the
training and development of individual staff and team
building, as the Group’s success is dependent on the
contributions of all functional divisions comprising of
skilled and motivated staff.

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio, providing shareholders with
an equitable return. The Board has recommended a
final dividend of HKDO0.075 per share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2007 to shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members on
16 May 2008. Subject to approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the dividend
for the year represents a 26% payout of the total net
profit for the year.
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high level
of corporate governance within a sensible framework
with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Group and the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange which came into
effect on 1 January 2005, the Board has reviewed the
corporate governance practices of the Company with the
adoption and improvement of the various procedures
and documentation which are detailed in this report.
The Company has adopted and complied with the
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended
31 December 2007, except for certain deviations as
specified with considered reasons for such deviations as
explained in this corporate governance report.

The Board currently comprises seven Directors and its
composition is set out as follows:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Zhu Yongxiang

Tang Daoping

Gong Zhao

Zhu Lanfen

Cheng Longdi

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on
pages 31 to 33.

The Company has three INEDs representing more than
one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual
and interim results. During the year, four Board meetings
were held and attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out as follows:

RAAHEEEERAT

“ERLEER
W
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Number of
Board meetings
attended/held

HE/BTESE
BRI
Executive Directors: HITES
Hong Tianzhu R
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FRERITEAEZ) 4/4
Zhu Yongxiang RKFE 4/4
Tang Daoping HiET 4/4
Gong Zhao BERR 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUFHTES !
Zhu Lanfen K 4/4
Cheng Longdi 2R 4/4
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIE
MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, 4/4
FTIHK, FHKloD FTIHK, FHKloD
The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration KEZE@RTHEE T EEBRIENEBELESR
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, B - 13858 - 2ERPEEE  ESHA

investment plans, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment, material contracts and transactions as well
as other significant policies and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the
senior management under the supervision of the Board.
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Board meetings are scheduled to be held at
approximately quarterly intervals and as required by
business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that
all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the
intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as
practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes
of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors
for their comment before the same will be tabled at
the following Board meeting for approval. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management. Directors will
be continuously updated on the major development
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the
Securities Code”) regarding securities transactions by
Directors and officers on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code is sent to each Director
of the Company first on his appointment and thereafter
twice annually, one month before the date of the Board
meetings to approve the Company’s half-year result and
annual result, with a reminder that the Director cannot
deal in the securities and derivatives of the Company
until after such results have been published, and that all
his dealings must be conducted in accordance with the
Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, Directors are required to
notify Mr Hong Tianzhu or Mr Zhu Yongxiang or a
director (other than himself/herself) designated by the
Board for the specific purpose (“Designated Director”)
and received a dated written acknowledgement from
such Designated Director before dealing in the securities
and derivatives of the Company.
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During the year, the Company, having made specific
enquiry on all the Directors, confirms that all its Directors
have complied with the Securities Code.

Code A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr
Hong Tianzhu is the both chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board considers that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals
and meets regularly, approximately every three months,
to discuss issues affecting operations of the Company.
The Board believes that this structure is conductive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Group to
make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
The Board has full confidence in Mr Hong Tianzhu and
believes that his appointment to the posts of chairman
and chief executive officer is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Company.

In December 2005, the Board has established and
adopted a written nomination procedure (the “Nomination
Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria for
the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Board shall, based
on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction
package containing all key legal and Listing Rules’
requirements as well as guidelines on the responsibilities
and obligations to be observed by a director. The
package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.
The senior management will subsequently conduct such
briefing as is necessary to give the new Directors more
detailed information on the Group’s businesses and
activities.
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Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Cheng
Longdi and Ms. Zhu Lanfen has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director for an initial
term of one year commencing from 21 November 2004
renewable automatically for successive term of one year
each commencing from the next day after the expiry of
the then current term of appointment, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the independent non-executive Director or
the Company expiring at the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter. The Company has paid an annual
director’s fee of HKD72,000 to each of Ms. Zhu Lanfen
and Mr. Cheng Longdi and HKD168,000 to Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen for the year ended 31 December
2007. Save for directors’ fees, none of the independent
non-executive Directors has received any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent
non-executive Director.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee
and an Audit Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which
are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
on pages 20 to 22 in the section “The Board” above,
have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee, which comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms Zhu Lanfen and Mr Cheng
Longdi and the chairman of the Company, namely Mr
Hong Tianzhu. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The
Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the code provisions of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance
with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(h)

(i)

to formulate and make recommendation to the
Board on the Group’s staff compensation policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management;

to make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

notwithstanding (b) above, to review and approve
performance-based discretionary bonus for the
Directors and senior management by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time, and to review the
performance against these corporate goals and
objectives;

in respect of any service agreement to be entered
into between any members of the Group and its
director or proposed director, to review and provide
recommendations to the shareholders of the
Company as to whether the terms of the service
agreements are fair and reasonable and whether
such service agreements are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole, and to
advise shareholders on how to vote;

to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is included in deciding
his own remuneration;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director or
senior management upon their resignation in
order to ascertain the reasons (from remuneration
perspective) for his departure.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year. One committee meeting was held in 2007 to review
and discuss the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors, the remuneration packages of
both the Executive and non-executive Directors and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIE
Hong Tianzhu R
Zhu Lanfen KBEZF
Cheng Longdi T2ERR

In addition to the Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2007. The remuneration payable to Directors
will depend on their respective contractual terms under
their employment or service contracts as approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior
executives and key employees of the Group, including
the Executive Directors, the Company has adopted
a share option scheme in November 2004. Details of
the share option scheme are set out in the Directors’
Report on pages 39 to 42 and note 16 to the financial
statements.

The Audit Committee has been established since
November 2004, the current members of the Audit
Committee are Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman),
Ms. Zhu Lanfen and Mr. Cheng Longdi. To retain
independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee has
been chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee has
adopted terms of reference, which are in line with the
code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered
necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee

are:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(h)

)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of
internal control and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management’s response;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices;

to review the external auditor’s management
letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
Two committee meetings were held in 2007 and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Zhu Lanfen PN B2
Cheng Longdi TERERR

During the meetings held in 2007, the Audit Committee
had performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditors regarding the
final audit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2006 (the “2006 Final Audit’) and for the
interim results review for the six months ended 30
June 2007 (the “2007 Interim Review”);

(i) reviewed the external auditors’ report of finding in
relation to the 2006 Final Audit and the auditors’
report on the connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2006 where waivers had been
granted by the Stock Exchange;

(i) reviewed the external auditors’ independent review
report in relation to the 2007 Interim Review;

(iv) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31

December 2006 and for the six months ended 30

June 2007; and

(v) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and

the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing, with the support from finance department,
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007, the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out
in the Auditors’ Report on pages 56 and 57.

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control. During the
financial year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
through the Audit Committee.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

RALG R MERAT
e

W

MUMBEE 2 MBI T - EFHERREREHELE
B BHREALEE BE-_SZLF TR
=T RUEFEZMERRCIZREE G
RERM2BBMBREER - BEEFHER
K@ AR EWmBRARARGRD 2 EREE
HREMAREL -

ARRRINSAZ B KRB S RTENE AT 2
PE A E RN B R E FE56 57

ETRABRMBRUMAMNABEZERS - 1
CIEEFE - %%A BBEZZBERIAS
EIEp e

RER - BN RENARRIMNSAZBEDZE SR
BERTENEBAM BT

Payable
Services rendered for the Group AL ERME 2 R ERER
RMB’000
ARWFor
Audit services RIS 3,820
Non-audit services (including agreed-upon  3ERZEURTY (BIEAFE
procedures for continuing connected F%L ZHRF RN LR
transactions and preliminary NFTETHRERT)
announcement of results) -
Total: &5t 3,820
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The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with shareholders. Information in relation
to the Group is disseminated to shareholders in a timely
manner through a number of formal channels, which
include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman actively
participates in the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any questions from the shareholders.
A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM.
An AGM circular is distributed to all shareholders at
least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting out details of
each proposed resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and
other relevant information. The Chairman explains the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll again
at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where a poll
is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against
have been received in respect of each resolution.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the
Stock Exchange but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue
to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory
changes and developments. Any views and suggestions
from our shareholders are also welcome to promote our
transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 April 2008
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu, 40, is an executive Director and
chairman of the Group. He is the founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the overall business development
strategy of the Group. Mr. Hong is currently a vice
chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited. He has over 18 years of experience in the textile
industry. Prior to establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was
a vice general manager of BIZYWREBEGR AT
(Jinjiang Yifeng Garment Weaving Company Limited).
Mr. Hong is a director and the 100% beneficial owner of
Hong Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited (B8R T %A
FRA 8] or “Hong Kong Tin Hong”), and the sole director
of New Green Group Limited, which is 100% owned
by Hong Kong Tin Hong. Mr. Hong is also a director of
Trade Partner Investments Limited, which is owned as to
51.36% by him. Each of New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited was the beneficial
owner of 395,459,173 and 163,500,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each in the Company as at 31 December 2007
respectively.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, 41, is an executive Director and
chief operation officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the daily operations of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the FE@% & T2t (Nantong Textile Industry
College) in 1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr.
Zhu was an assistant to the general manager of F&E 5
ZigsEER (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory). Mr.
Zhu is the sole director and the 100% beneficial owner
of Wisdom Grace Limited. Mr. Zhu is also a director of
Trade Partner Investments Limited, which is owned as
to 41.36% by him. Each of Trade Partner Investments
Limited and Wisdom Grace Limited was the beneficial
owner of 163,500,000 and 88,216,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each in the Company as at 31 December 2007
respectively.

Mr. Tang Daoping, 42, is an executive Director and
vice president of the Group. He is responsible for the
operations of the Group’s yarn business. Mr. Tang is also
a director and the chairman of Texhong Suining, Jiangsu
Century Texhong, Xuzhou Century Texhong, Xuzhou
Texhong Times, Nantong Century Texhong, Nantong
Texhong Yinhai and Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng. Mr. Tang
graduated from HMEFHEHRAZE (Xuzhou Radio and
TV University) in 1996 majoring in accounting. Mr. Tang
has over 25 years of experience in the textile industry.
He was a workshop manager of HMEE1R454%8 (Suining
Cotton Textile Factory) prior to joining the Group in 1998
as a vice general manager. Mr. Tang was promoted
and became a director of Texhong Suining and Jiangsu
Century Texhong in September 2002.
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Mr. Gong Zhao, 53, is an executive Director and
vice president of the Group. He is responsible for the
operations of the Group’s grey fabric business. Mr. Gong
is also a director and the chairman of Texhong Jinhua,
Zhejiang Texhong and Zhejiang Century Texhong. Mr.
Gong has over 25 years of experience in the textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998 as a vice
general manager, Mr. Gong had worked in #&$5 5500
R4k (Wuxi No. 4 Cotton Textile Factory). Mr. Gong
was promoted and became a director of Texhong Jinhua
in January 2001.

Ms. Zhu Lanfen, 66, studied in Z£EE#54% T 26z (Huadong
Textile Industry School) in textile. Ms. Zhu has over
40 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to
16 May 2006, Ms. Zhu was an independent director
of Wuxi Qing Feng Co. Ltd., a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Ms. Zhu is also currently
the vice president of the council of FEBAHEITEHE
(China Cotton Textile Industry Association). She joined
the Group and was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 November 2004.

Professor Cheng Longdi, 48, obtained his doctorate
degree in textile from Donghua University in 2002.
Professor Cheng is currently a professor of E#E K%
#H T2 ZE (Department of Textile Engineering, Donghua
University) and he is also the #&mEERMTHE HELLE
B =H B (E (deputy director of the key laboratory of
Textile Science and Technology, Ministry of Education).
Professor Cheng is an academic committee member
of the cotton textile profession committee of the China
Society of Textile Engineering. Professor Cheng is
also the committee member of the expert committee
of China Textile Planning Institute of Construction.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile
Academy (formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile
Ministry). He joined the Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 November
2004.
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Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD, aged 54, was
appointed as independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 21 November 2004. Mr. Ting is
an accountant in public practice and has more than
30 years’ experience in this field. Currently he is
the Managing Partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr.
Ting is a member of the 9th Chinese People Political
& Consultative Conference, Fujian. He is now an
independent non-executive director of six other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, eForce Holdings Limited,
MACRO-LINK International Holdings Limited, Minmetals
Resources Limited, Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Company Limited and Tongda Group Holdings Limited
respectively. He is also a non-executive director of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong. He was a non-executive director
of Premium Land Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong from 29 April 2006 to 28 May 2006.

Mr. Sha Tao, 42, a vice president of the Group and
responsible for the production and purchase of the
Group’s grey fabric operations. He is also a director and
the chairman of Taizhou Texhong Weaving and Taizhou
Century Texhong. Mr. Sha obtained his bachelor’s

Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 20 years
of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1998, he was a factory manager of one of the
factories of miAE — 4% (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, 44, is a vice president of the Group
and responsible for the grey fabric sales operations of
the Group. Mr. Hu graduated from 5B % K2 (Wuxi
Professional University) in textile in 1984. Mr. Hu has
over 20 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was an vice general manager of G EEFR A )
(Wuxi Xieda Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining
the Group in 1998.
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Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, 35, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Shu
graduated from the Deakin University with a Bachelor
degree of business with major in accounting. He is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. Mr. Shu
has more than 10 years of experience in auditing,
corporate finance, corporate advisory services and
financial management. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Shu was an associate director of Piper Jaffrany Asia
Capital Limited (formerly known as Goldbond Capital
(Asia) Limited). Mr. Shu joined the Group in May 2005.
He is the qualified accountant of the Group pursuant
to Rule 3.24 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

34

FERLE 355K ASENMBEERD
BIWE o 875 E R ERRM 8 & K2 (Deakin
University) " i B2 2184 - TE®E -
HrERBESETMASEE RRMERIA
BEE - AFAARER  bERE - BEEM
AR R 75 7 T RFE B 105 485 o 70N
ALREER - A BRATEMNBRESR AR
(FIiEeEmE(GEMBRATBMEES - 47
S HER2005F5 A MNAREE - RIRE AT
FHEmRAN ETRAIDE3. 2415 - BARE
B AEREERD o



NRIE R

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Gong Zhao

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
MH FCCA FCPA (Practising) ACA FTIHK FHKloD

Ms. Zhu Lanfen
Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
MH FCCA FCPA (Practising) ACA FTIHK FHKloD

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Ms. Zhu Lanfen
Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence

Room 1818, 18/F
Metroplaza Tower 1
223 Hing Fong Road
Kwai Fong, N.T.
Hong Kong

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

RALG @R MERAT
“ERLEER

HRMELE(ZE)
RoKFEFRE
ZEYRE
BRSLL

TRESXSE
MH FCCA FCPA (Practising) ACA FTIHK FHKIoD
RS EL
TR R

TREXE
MH FCCA FCPA (Practising) ACA FTIHK FHKIoD
AR E
EN PoR e
TR

FERSLLE

HRBTE
FFEREL

B

RS

BT 2235
HEGESE B
181£1818=

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KYI-1111
Cayman Islands

35



TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2007

CORPORATE INFORMATION A && %}

Citibank (China) Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch

ABN AMRO (China) Bank N.V. (formerly known as
ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Shanghai Branch)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chiu & Partners

Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House, 68 Fort Street
P.O. Box 705, Dr. Roy’s Drive
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

www.texhong.com

2678
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The Directors of the Company submit their report
together with the audited accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of yarn, grey fabrics and garment fabrics. The principal
activities of each of the subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 37 to the accompanying financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group operated in one
business segment — manufacturing and sale of yarn,
grey fabrics and dyed fabrics. Accordingly, no analysis of
the business segment information is presented.

The Group operates in two main geographical areas,
Mainland China and Vietnam. Geographical analysis
of sales, segment results, total assets,and capital
expenditures are set out in note 5 to the accompanying
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 60 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of
HKDO0.075 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2007 to shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members on 16 May 2008.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited no later than 4:30 p.m. on 8 May 2008.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out in
note 17 to the accompanying financial statements.
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Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2007 are set out in note 7 to the accompanying
financial statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 15 to the accompanying
financial statements.

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December
2007 is set out in note 17 to the accompanying financial
statements.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 3 of this annual report.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a written resolution of all
the then shareholders of the Company passed on 21
November 2004 (“Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
All directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group, advisers or
consultants of the Group and any other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement and growth of the Group are eligible to
participate in the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years after the Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue on
the Listing Date (“General Scheme Limit”). The Company
may renew the General Scheme Limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being (“Individual Limit”).

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, which period may commence on a day after
the date upon which the offer for the grant of options
is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

As at 31 December 2007, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Another share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a written resolution of
all the then shareholders of the Company passed on 21
November 2004 for the primary purpose of recognising
and rewarding the contribution of certain directors, senior
management, employees, consultants and advisers of
the Group to the growth and development of the Group
and the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
except that:

(i) the classes of eligible participants are different from

that of the Share Option Scheme;

(i) the General Scheme Limit, the Individual Limit and
the restrictions on grant of options to a connected
person do not apply;
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(iii) the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were adopted unconditionally but the exercise of
any option is conditional on the Stock Exchange
granting listing of, and permission to deal in, any
Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on or before 30 days after the date of the
Prospectus, failing which such options granted and
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall forthwith
lapse; and

(iv) the Directors may only grant options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option at any time with a period
commencing from 21 November 2004 and ending
at 9:00 a.m. on the Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2007, the number of Shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
was 3,142,000, representing approximately 0.355% of
the Shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of the outstanding share options as at 31
December 2007 which have been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of option shares
BREHA
Outstanding
at1
January
2007 Exercised
RZEStE during
Date of grant -A-H the year
RUAH WA ERETE
Mr. Zhang 21 November 1,200,000 1,200,000
Chuanmin 2004
RERTE —EIME
+-A=1-H
Mr. Sha Tao 21 November 1,158,000 -
PEEE 2004
ik
T—A=+-H
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Outstanding
at 31
December
2007 Exercise
RZBELE price  Exercisable period

tZB=+-B e TEHR
HAR{THE HKS  (Note (i)
A (W)

- 069 three years
commencing from and
including the date
falling six months
after the Listing Date

=f
B TR ERE
RAEAEHRR

1,158,000 0.69  three years
commencing from
and including the date
falling six months
after the Listing Date

=F
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mAEAERRR
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Number of option shares
BREHE
Outstanding
at1
January
2007 Exercised
R-BBLE during
Date of grant -B-H the year
RiLAH WA ERETH
Mr. Hu Zhiping 21 November 1,158,000 -
BETRE 2004
—EENE
T-A=1+-A
Mr. Yin Jianhua 21 November 826,000 -
(Note (ii)) 2004
FRERE —ZTME
(W) T-A=t-H
Total 4,342,000 1,200,000

28

Note (i): During the first one year and the first two years of the
exercise period, each grantee may not exercise his
option exceeding one-third and two-thirds respectively
of the total number of underlying Shares in respect of
the options granted to him.

Note (ii): Mr. Yin Jianhua (“Mr. Yin”) passed away on 8

September 2007. According to the rules of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and with the approval from
the board of Directors, the options granted to Mr. Yin
was transferred to Ms. Shao Wei, estate of Mr. Yin.

The fair value of all options granted on 21 November
2004 was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation
model was RMB433,000. The significant inputs into
the model were share price of HK$0.69 per share at
the grant date, exercise price shown above, standard
deviation of expected share price returns of 30%,
expected life of options of 0.5 years, expected dividend
paid out rate of zero and annual risk-free interest rate of
2.88%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the year after the
Group’s initial public offering in November 2004.
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The Directors during the year were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Gong Zhao

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*
Ms. Zhu Lanfen*

Mr. Cheng Longdi*

*

Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Tang Daoping, Mr. Gong Zhao
and Ms. Zhu Lanfen will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, Mr.
Tang Daoping and Mr. Gong Zhao, all being executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 21 November 2004, and will continue thereafter
for successive term of one year until terminated by not
less than three month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other expiring at the end of the initial term or
at any time thereafter.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Zhu Lanfen and
Mr. Cheng Longdi are independent non-executive
directors and were appointed for an initial term of one
year commencing from 21 November 2004 renewable
automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the
then current term, unless terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing at the end of the initial
term or at any time thereafter.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has
a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his/her
independence and the Company considers that each of
them to be independent based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, the controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis during the year under review are set out in note 25
to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year
under review are set out in note 25 to the accompanying
financial statements.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly,
making reference to legal framework, market condition
and performance of the Group and individual staff
(including the Directors). The remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and member of the senior management of the Group
are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, which
are detailed in the paragraph headed “Remuneration
Committee” under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this report.
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Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 25 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Brief biographical details of directors and senior
management as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 31 to 34 of this annual report.

At 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions, if any,
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Number of Shares held

BERGHE

Name of Number of

Group member/ ordinary

associated shares

Name of directors corporation Nature of (Note 1)
of the Company AEEREAT interest ZERGOEE Percentage
AARESHE BeErEEE EEME (Bizt1) ASL
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 558,959,173 (L) 63.24%

R K E RAT] corporation(s) (Note 2)

FrizEslAE AR R (Mfst2)
the Company Beneficial owner 4,400,000 (L) 0.50%

RAT] EmfEAA

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of controlled 251,716,000 (L) 28.48%

RKFFSE AAR] corporation(s) (Note 3)

FrizEHlAE AR R (H1%3)
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

Among these 558,959,173 Shares, as to 395,459,173
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Hong Kong
Tin Hong Industrial Limited, a company 100% owned
by Mr. Hong Tianzhu and as to 163,500,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 51.36% by
Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by New
Green Group Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

Among these 251,716,000 Shares, as to 88,216,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and as to 163,500,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 41.36% by Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

[LIRRZALIRED TR -

% 558,959,173 IX I 17 1 395,459,173 A LA
New Green Group Limited (New Green
Group Limited 2 5B B/ TIRAB BB RILE
EERARERMEA  BARANEEBSEBZ
DEN00% R ) BEIEREREA AT
163,500,000 i% LA Trade Partner Investments
Limited CEARI ST AE BTG 2 PEETRD
#151.36% %) BERIEREREA AT
REFES KRB G - ARV EERERAR
New Green Group Limited } Trade Partner
Investments Limited & 2 FT B IR (7 15 B #
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% 251,716,000 % A% {5 9 88,216,000 fi% LA
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R ERE GBI+ KoK FF 5 A4 #5148 2 7 Wisdom
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So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December FEZFHE R_ZE+F+_A=+—
2007, the interests or short position of the persons other B » RANR BRI AR K EEBFHEE
than a Director or chief executive of the Company in  RIEZES NS IEHIFE336 85 42 83N AN A RZA
the Shares or underlying shares or debenture of the FHFEERMRZEREIAEHAT(HER
Company which were recorded in the register required to  RFlZ —BEFHEZITBAERINAOT ¢
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of the Company:

Name of the
substantial shareholder

FLRAEERR

New Green Group Limited

Trade Partner Investments Limited

Wisdom Grace Investments Limited

Hong Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited
BEBRRLEBXARLA

Ms. KE Luping

Ms. ZHAO Zhiyang
HEHT L

Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye
B

Value Partners Limited

ATz EBAR
Number of Shares held
RERGEA
Number of
ordinary
Nature of shares
interests (Note 1) Percentage
ERME EERHYE Bk
(Het1)
Beneficial owner 395,459,173 (L) 44.74%
EnEBA (Note 2)
(Hiat2)
Beneficial owner 163,500,000 (L) 18.50%
A A (Note 3)
(K17#3)
Beneficial owner 88,216,000 (L) 9.98%
BB A (Note 4)
(Bizt4)
Interest of controlled 395,459,173 (L) 44.74%
corporation(s) (Note 2)
FRiZBE A B RS (Mfst2)
Interest of spouse 563,359,173 (L) 63.74%
BBt (Note 5)
(K17#6)
Interest of spouse 251,716,000 (L) 28.48%
Ao B (Note 6)
(Bizt6)
Founder of a 57,216,000 (L) 6.47%
discretionary trust (Note 7)
—IERREEFEREIZA (Mist7)
Investment manager 57,216,000 (L) 6.47%
REKIE (Note 7)
(K1737)
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

These 395,459,173 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by New Green Group Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Hong Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited, a company
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the
SFO, each of Hong Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited and
Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by New Green Group Limited.

These 163,500,000 Shares are registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 51.36% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu,
41.36% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, 2.24%, 1.68%, 1.68%
and 1.68%, by Mr. Sha Tao, Mr. Tang Daoping, Mr.
Gong Zhao, Mr. Hu Zhiping. Under the SFO, each of
Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Trade Partner
Investments Limited.

These 88,216,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under the SFO,
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under
the SFO, Ms. Ke Luping is taken to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Hong Tianzhu are
interested.

Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is the spouse of Mr. Zhu Yongxiang.
Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is taken to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang are interested.

Based on the disclosure of interest forms filed by Mr.
Cheah Cheng Hye and Value Partners Limited on 30
October 2007, these 57,216,000 Shares are registered in
the name of Value Partners Limited, which is controlled by
Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheah Cheng
Hye is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Value Partners Limited.

Kt -

1.
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Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Options” above, at no time during the 12 months ended
31 December 2007 was the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors (including their spouses or
children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the
Company or any other body corporate.

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year under review.

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 16.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 37.4%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.3%
— five largest customers combined 12.1%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director, has interest in
the following textile related businesses (the “Excluded
Businesses”) through Tin Hong Industrial, a company
wholly-owned by him, which are either complementary
to or likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s business in Mainland China. Details of the
Excluded Businesses are as follows:

Tianhong Printing and Dyeing is a wholly owned
foreign-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC,
the entire equity interest of which is owned by Tin
Hong Industrial. Tianhong Printing and Dyeing had
been principally engaged in the provision of printing
and dyeing services and sale of garment fabrics to
garment manufacturers and trading agents prior
to the cessation of its commercial operations of
its printing and dyeing business since January
2007. Prior to the cessation of its printing and
dyeing business, Tianhong Printing and Dyeing
sold its products mainly in Jiangsu Province and
Shanghai Municipality of China. The management
team of the Group is basically independent from
the management team of Tianhong Printing and
Dyeing.

Prior to completion of the Group’s acquisition of
37% interest in Nantong Textile from Tin Hong
Industrial on 30 September 2007 (the “Acquisition”),
Nantong Textile was owned as to 39% by Tin
Hong Industrial. Subsequent to the Acquisition,
Nantong Textile is owned as to 2% by Tin Hong
Industrial. Nantong Textile is principally engaged
in printing, dyeing of fabrics and selling of garment
fabrics, linen cotton blended fabrics and polyester
cotton blended fabrics. Tin Hong Industrial has no
shareholding or management control over Nantong
Textile prior to the Acquisition.
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The Group’s principal business is the production
and sale of yarn and grey fabrics. It was not
engaged in printing and dyeing work and did not
maintain any printing and dyeing facilities prior to
completion of the Acquisition. On that basis, the
Directors are of the view that, prior to completion of
the Acquisition, both Tianhong Printing and Dyeing
and Nantong Textile did not pose any competition
to the Group as the principal business of Tianhong
Printing and Dyeing and Nantong Textile were
principally different from the principal business of
the Group. As Tianhong Printing and Dyeing has
ceased its commercial operations since January
2007 and Mr. Hong’s indirect interest in Nantong
Textile was reduced to 2% since September 2007
and therefore ceased to be an associate of Mr.
Hong, the Directors are of the opinion that Mr.
Hong’s interest in Tianhong Printing and Dyeing
and Nantong Textile will not have any significant
competition to the Group’s business operations.

During the year under review, the following continued
connected transactions (the “Transactions”) have been
entered into by the Group. These Transactions were
entered into by the Group on normal commercial terms
and were de minimis transactions of the Group according
to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules, and therefore
were exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Tianhong Printing and Dyeing is a company
100% owned by Tin Hong Industrial, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Hong
Tianzhu, an executive Director.

During the year under review, the Group had
sold from time to time its grey fabrics to Tianhong
Printing and Dyeing on normal commercial terms
and were no more favorable that those available to
independent third party purchasers. The aggregate
sales of the Group’s grey fabrics to Tianhong
Printing and Dyeing amounted to approximately
RMB28,000 (equivalent to HK$29,000) and
therefore did not exceed HK$1,000,000, being the
de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, the Group had
purchased garment fabrics from Tianhong Printing
and Dyeing from time to time and on normal
commercial terms and were not less favorable
that those available to independent third party
purchasers. The aggregate purchases of garment
fabrics by the Group from Tianhong Printing and
Dyeing amounted to approximately RMB681,000
(equivalent to HK$702,000) and therefore did
not exceed HK$1,000,000, being the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

Prior to completion of the Acquisition, Nantong
Textile was owned as to 39% by Tin Hong Industrial.
Tin Hong Industrial is the controlling shareholder of
the Company and the entire issued share capital of
which is owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive
Director. Accordingly, Nantong Textile had been an
associate of Tin Hong Industrial and Mr. Hong prior
to completion of the Acquisition and therefore was
a connected person of the Company. Subsequent
to completion of the Acquisition, Nantong Textile
ceased to be an associate of Tin Hong Industrial
and Mr. Hong and the Group’s transactions with
Nantong Textile ceased to be continuing connected
transactions of the Company thereafter.

During the period from 1 January 2007 up to 30
September 2007, when Nantong Textile ceased
to be a connected person of the Company, the
Group had sold from time to time its grey fabrics to
Nantong Textile on normal commercial terms and
were no more favorable than those available to
independent third party purchasers. The aggregate
sales of the Group’s grey fabrics to Nantong Textile
during the period amounted to approximately
RMB954,000 (equivalent to HK$983,000) and
therefore did not exceed HK$1,000,000, being the
de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules.

REEERE » NEBEN—REEERT
B (A R BN AR EE MR - MR T i
REBYLE=ZFERREHEZIEK - A&
ER R EARE B RENEAR
#681,000 T (FHE $2702,0008 7T ) ©
WA ETRBIE14A33MEFTE T 2
1,000,000/ 7T/ NFBEA 2 £ IR -

FEUWREETEAC AT - MBS A R E X
BI0%BHE o RITEXABANRF ZIERK
MR AR EEBITRAHNITES MR
RRFEEES - Bt - EUREETKAT -
MBS AR EE MR EEZBE R
A WAKARZEEAL - ZEWE
TR MRGBTEARIEELML
FEZHENT  MAEEEREBRG
EITZR G TIBERARR 2 BER
%o

R_EE+F—A—HZ=2_FTZT+HFh
A=+ HEM(FmBsHg I NBARATZ
BEEEAT)  REBEFEEEERTE
HERM FEBHE  MERLTER
B E=ZFBERRBEZIER - HEA
EEHEETFRHBMNM I EMAEEEY
# A R #954,0007T (18 & 7 983,000
J0) ¢ BN _E TR BISE 14A 331KAT
TF 21,000,000/ 7T/ NEEEA SR EIR -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ==23)%

During the period from 1 January 2007 up to 30
September 2007, when Nantong Textile ceased
to be a connected person of the Company, the
Group had purchased garment fabrics from
Nantong Textile from time to time and on normal
commercial terms and were not less favorable
that those available to independent third party
purchasers. The aggregate purchases of garment
fabrics by the Group from Nantong Textile during
the period amounted to approximately RMB238,000
(equivalent to HK$245,000) and therefore did
not exceed HK$1,000,000, being the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors had
reviewed the Transactions and confirmed that the
Transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms, or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favorable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms and that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules have been compiled with by the
Company.

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on
terms no less exacting than the terms of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific
enquiry on all the directors of the Company, and all its
directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Securities Code and the Model Code during the year
under review.
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R-ZEE+E—A—HE-_ZTZTLFAN
B=TBSB(EEMHEI~BEAEEARTZ
B A L) ANEBEUEEEEGERTE
MR B EIRBEA - TIERIETER
MBYE=ZFEREHZIER - BIEAR
EEEERSMRBRNABEOEAR
#238,0007T (1A 245,000/ 7C) © W
WABE EHRBNE14AIETE T Z
1,000,000/ 7T/ EEEA 2 LR ©

BYFRTEFCEHZERS - L
Bx

=25

(i) REAEBEEXAFESBIEPE]
VA

(i) TE—PARPEEEMRIRETAL AR =]
BRABRSUTEZER SR
B AR EERET L - BIRT A&
W BN AEERBEBLIE= K
BYE=ZHRHEAEE(INES )N
&30 &

(i) BRBBEERDOEBGBR - 5
BARTAR  FAATFRAAR
RT3 -

BEHR ARACKEST EMRAE
VAZEHNHEERT -

ARBBFAERARR LR RN+ Pz
EHRARERETEARRFNRETARE
STRIMESTR - BRRBFHIRNERES
EHEMREK H2REERR  REHERE
BEENETES TR RRETA -

53



TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2007

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE==#4%

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules at any time during the
financial year ended 31 December 2007.

The Company has established an audit committee which
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Zhu Lanfen
and Mr. Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
is the chairman of the audit committee. The rights and
duties of the audit committee comply with the Code
Provisions. The audit committee is responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal control system and providing advice
and recommendations to the Board.

The audit committee had reviewed the audited results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2007.

The remuneration committee of the Directors comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Zhu Lanfen and Mr.
Cheng Longdi and the chairman and executive Director,
namely Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen is the chairman of the remuneration committee.
The remuneration committee has rights and duties
consistent with those set out in the Code Provisions.
The remuneration committee is principally responsible
for formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all
remunerations of the Directors and senior management
and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
of Directors.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance was known to the Directors to be pending
or threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE2/H&

The financial statements have been audited by B RERLECRACESEENERTEZ - &
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being EFESHMERAERET  YEEBHRT
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the —[ERERET RS FREERE -

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board EEEEWN

Hong Tianzhu HRK

Chairman e

Hong Kong, 3 April 2008 8 —_EET/\FHA=H
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORMKESMEBR

To the shareholders of Texhong Textile Group
Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 139, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B M H iR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2007
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 April 2008
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As at 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)

R-ZZLF+-_A=1+—"H0 FBEEBEAAREE)
Nole
Kt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights T {E AR 6
Property, plant and equipment #@% = N & A 7
Goodwill =EES 9
Investment in an associate ANl 3 10
Deferred income tax assets BEFMSRERE 19
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 11
Trade and bills receivables EWE S MEBRIE 12
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - e Rk
other receivables ﬁfﬂlﬁ@ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ%’ﬂ 13
Pledged bank deposits BIIRIRITIER 14
Cash and cash equivalents fii&fﬁ/\ﬁfﬁqﬁ% 14
Current liabilities REBARE
Trade and bills payables ENESREFEFIE 20
Accruals and other payables T‘Eh%ﬁﬁ&ﬁi\@rﬁ
BRI 21
Current income tax liabilities & Hﬂﬁﬁ SHArsE
Borrowings BE 18
Net current assets RBEETFE
Total assets less HEERRBASE
current liabilities
Non-current liabilities _?'Fuu,ibﬁfs
Borrowings 1 18
Deferred income tax liabilities Lﬁﬁ SHAatE 19
Net assets EEFE
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EATREFEA
attributable to the BERAR S
Company'’s equity holders
Share capital [N 15
Reserves i 17
Total equity IR e 42 5E
Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang HR

Chairman Executive Director /=

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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HIEERLAR S

2007
—EFLE

RMB’000
ARETFT

104,622
1,187,543

43,799
3,607

1,339,571

651,899
364,832

78,440
10,773
199,615

1,305,559

467,502

155,637
7,325
225,253

855,717
449,842

1,789,413

702,584
11,078

713,662
1,075,751

93,990
981,761

1,075,751

RKHE
HITEE

TS ImARA — B0 ©

2006
—EEANE

RMB’000
ARMTT

70,519
824,057
888

3,879
899,343

450,722
227,452

98,099
14,397
139,887

930,557

270,549

171,786

1,704
308,538
752,577

177,980

1,077,323

204,458
11,216

215,674
861,649

92,842
768,807

861,649
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BALANCE SHEET
BEBEXR
As at 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)
RZZETHF+_A=+—H FAESEAARBE)
2007 2006
—BBLE  —TTAA
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hrat AR FT ARET T

Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WENRERE 7 550 790
Interests in subsidiaries R B A RIHRE 8 826,962 246,989
827,512 247,779
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - HE Rk
other receivables H b fEURBR K 13 717 732
Due from subsidiaries JE R BT /B A A FROE 8 312,401 243,371
Cash and cash equivalents BeMNREEEY 14 1,639 525
314,757 244,628
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals TEIRE 21 17,468 2,768
Due to a subsidiary JEAHFT B A = EIE 8 2,015 580
19,483 3,348
Net current assets REBEEZFE 295,274 241,280
Total assets less current liabilities #&ERGEE G 1,122,786 489,059
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 18 579,973 =
Net assets BEERE 542,813 489,059
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to Z~2 5 R#EFHE A
the Company’s equity holders BihERREE
Share capital A& AN 15 93,990 92,842
Reserves EE 17 448,823 396,217
Total equity L ET 542,813 489,059
Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang AR RIKFE
Chairman Executive Director /& HiTEE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this  KizEAULI SRR —EF1D -
financial statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)

BE-ET+E+-_A=t+—BI5E

Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Other income
Other gains/(losses) — net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net
Share of profit of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year, attributable
to equity holders
of the Company

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

— basic

— diluted

Dividends

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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(IS EAAREHE)
2007

2Bt

Note RMB’000

Htat AR¥TF T

e 5,22 3,254,109
SHEE AR 24 (2,819,358)
E ] 434,751
SHE R HAX 24 (75,851)
—MRITHAX 24 (144,390)
HAb YA 23 21,673

Hlas/ (E58)

— B 23 43,109
B RR 279,292
BFISURA 26 3,594
BRI 26 (23,457)
WY — 58 26 (19,863)
DIEEEE A RLE T 10 3,178
BT S B AR R 262,607
FriSif X 27 (24,830)
FAERD T RE

BB AELEF

237,777

FREQTRE

BB AELRF

ZBRER

(AERARKERER)

—HK 30 0.27
—¥E 30 0.27
AR 2 31 62,073

ML Rt & M HRaRA — &R -

2006
—EERF
RMB’000
AEEFT

2,667,216
(2,264,353)

402,863
(64,849)
(110,817)
17,365
(1,756)
242,806

4,431
(32,443)

(28,012)

214,794
(24,258)

190,536

0.22
0.22

60,949
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)

BEZZLF+-A=+—HILFE

Balance at 1 January 2006

Profit for the year

Dividend relating to 2005

Dividend relating to 2006

Balance at 31 December 2006

Balance at 1 January 2007,
as per above

Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options

Acquisition of an associate

Surplus on revaluation of buildings,
net of deferred tax

Profit for the year
Dividend relating to 2006
Currency translation differences

Balance at 31 December 2007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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R-BERE
—B—BH&EH

FRRA

ot
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A
=
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cl
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A

BRE
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Lt NG

BTEMRG Bk
RIEHIA

EREN
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Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
AARREREAEL
Share Reserves
capital (Note 17) Total
R 1] @t
(Hizt17)

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
lirzg ANEEFT  ABETT AREFT
92,842 663,472 756,314

- 190,536 190,536
- (59,296) (59,296)
31 - (25,905) (25,905)
92,842 768,807 861,649

92,842 768,807 861,649

15 116 686 802
35 1,032 12,278 13,310
- 4,945 4,945

- 237,777 237,777
31 - (35,044) (35,044)
- (7,688) (7,688)

93,990 981,761 1,075,751

MisT Rt AR & B Rk ey — B0
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)
BE—TTLF+I-_A=1T—HIFE FASEAARKEE)

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from
investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash
and cash equivalents acquired

Acquisition of an associate

Capital contribution to an associate

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Prepaid operating lease payments for
land use rights

Government grant received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing
activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Repayment of government borrowings
Dividends paid to Company’s
equity holders
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease)
in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  HizE AUtira B wMERA—EH -

consolidated financial statements.

62

2007
—EELHF
Note RMB’000
HiaF AR¥FT
RELETFEN
BERE
KEMEANIRS 32 190,869
BFIE 3,594
BERFE (50,932)
BEARATEH (20,823)
KB TERENEE
R&/F5E 122,708
RERETEHN
ReRE
BB A Ak
%W%mﬁﬁ& -
SEEY
H&zﬁﬁﬂﬂ NG 35 (15,000)
éﬁ*é/&? Eéf 10 (12,311)
%A%% 5=
B (436,722)
ﬁﬁwﬁ 5 &
BAEATEIIE 32 9,968
+ ity P AR TE T
EIEHERIA 6 (52,178)
BB D 6 16,278
KB EBFFER S5 (489,965)
RERETEN
RERE
BT FTIS K 802
BEERBR 1,138,023
BEEN (680,420)
BEBRNER -
SAREFAR
MAERFA A 31 (35,044)
IR ITIER
B, () 3,624
B EEEFTIS
R&FE 426,985
HERBESZEY
B, R ) R 59,728
FzBReR
HEEEY 14 139,887
FRZEAER
REZEY 14 199,615

2006
—EERF
RMB’000
AEBFT

99,886
4,431
(35,214)
(27,765)

41,338

3,560

(223,063)
1,871

(26,336)
11,020

(232,948)

603,026
(429,261)

(11,500)

(85,201)

(5,539)
71,525

(120,085)

259,972

139,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (All amounts in RMB)
HE-TTALF+I-A=1T—HILFE FAELEAARKE)

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of yarn, grey fabrics and dyed fabrics.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 12 July 2004 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. (“the Stock Exchange”) since 9 December
2004.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors on 3 April 2008.

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of
Texhong Textile Group Limited have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of buildings,
which are carried at fair value.

RIHBEBERAR([ARE ) RE
MEBAR (R AEE])TEXB AR
ERHERAR - I RREE -

ARAR_ZENFLA+=-REHES
HERERESHESAREFMK LA —
RERRER AR - HFfai= Rt
/% Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands °

BR-ZZTWNE+_RANABER  RNAF
BRNEREREBERZMER QA
(TBEZZPT ) EMR_ETH ©

BRRAERAN  GaUBHRRAARE
(ARBE) 27 - W EERA M B MREN
“EEN\FHA=ZHEARFEEGE
WA T T o

REERRAMBBREMERNEIRS
STBERIAT - BRABEAIN - BLFEE
H—HEARMABZIINEE °

RUAHEBER R Z 76 W55
REBBVBREEN(TEEHB
WEERDRE - BARTFESIRR
ZBFERFEEEN  REaPH
BRAESERAEPIREL -
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The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contigent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of events and
actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates.

(a) Standards, amendment and

interpretations effective in 2007

In 2007, the Group adopted the HKFRS,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) and HK(IFRIC) — Interpretations
below, which are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 and relevant to its operations.
The impacts on the Group’s accounting
policies are set out below.

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments:
Disclosures”, and the complementary
amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation
of financial statements — Capital
disclosures”, introduce quantitative and
qualitative disclosures relating to financial
risks and credit quality of financial
instruments and discussion of capital
management strategy.

LREBMBREENRUMEE
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FEEENERASESHEEA
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FTRAZFE
R-ZZLF - AEEDHEMN
THIEEERE 2 BB
WEER) BB EA(F
BT ER ) KBS (BRRE
BWmERELZES) —2RE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Standards, amendment and
interpretations effective in 2007
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, “Scope of HKFRS 27,
requires consideration of transactions
involving the issuance of equity
instruments, where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the
fair value of the equity instruments issued
in order to establish whether or not they
fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. This
standard does not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, “Interim financial
reporting and impairment”, prohibits
the impairment losses recognised
in an interim period on goodwill and
investments in equity instruments and
in financial assets carried at cost to
be reversed at a subsequent balance
sheet date. This standard does not have
any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Standards, amendments and
interpretations effective in 2007 but not
relevant to the Group’s operations

The following interpretations to published
standards are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 but they are not relevant to the
Group’s operations:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7, “Applying the
restatement approach under HKAS 29,
Financial reporting in hyper-inflationary
economies”; and

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, “Re-assessment of
embedded derivatives”.

(@)

(b)
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(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective in 2007 and have not
been early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2008 or
later periods, but the Group has not early
adopted them:

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (effective
from 1 January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14. The new standard requires a
“management approach”, under which
segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The Group will apply
HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009 but it
is not expected to have any significant
impact on the presentation of Group’s
segment information.

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements”
(effective from annual period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009). The amendment
requires non-controlling interests (i.e.
minority interests) to be presented in
the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from
the equity of the owners of the parent.
Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the owners of the parent and
to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Changes in a
parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity. When control
of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and
liabilities and related equity components
of the former subsidiary are derecognised.
Any gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. The
Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from
1 January 2010.
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(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective in 2007 and have

not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business
Combination” (effective for business
combinations with acquisition date on
or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after
1 July 2009). The amendment may
bring more transactions into acquisition
accounting as combinations by contract
alone and combinations of mutual entities
are brought into the scope of the standard
and the definition of a business has
been amended slightly. It now states
that the elements are “capable of being
conducted” rather than “are conducted
and managed”. It requires considerations
(including contingent consideration),
each identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value,
except leases and insurance contracts,
reacquired right, indemnification assets
as well as some assets and liabilities
required to be measured in accordance
with other HKFRS. They are income
taxes, employee benefits, share-based
payment and non current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree
is measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets. The Group will apply HKFRS 3
(Revised) from 1 January 2010.
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(d) Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective in 2007 and not

relevant to the Group

The following interpretations to published
standards are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 but they are not relevant to the

Group’s operations
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, “HKFRS 2 — Group
and treasury share transactions”,
effective from 1 March 2007.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, “Service
concession arrangements” (effective
from 1 January 2008).

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, “Customer loyalty
programmes” (effective from 1 July
2008).

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The
limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and
their interaction” (effective from 1
January 2008).

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments
“Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation”
(effective from 1 January 2009).

HKFRS 2 Amendment “Share-
based Payment Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations” (effective from 1
January 2009).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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These consolidated financial statements LREMERRBIEAR A RENB
include the financial statements of the ARIR+=ZA=+— B8 B®R
Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to xo

31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries (a) K& A]

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.
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(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition (Note 2.5).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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(b) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences
are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiary or associate at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in investments in associates and is
tested for impairment as part of the overall
balance. Separately recognised goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose (Note
2.8).

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. All other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising
on revaluation of buildings are credited to
revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases
are charged to the income statement. Each
year the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to the income statement and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost
is transferred from “revaluation reserve” to
retained earnings.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

—  Buildings 15 to 40 years

—  Machinery and 6 to 15 years
equipment

—  Furniture and 5to 10 years
fixtures

—  Motor vehicles 510 7 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the income
statements. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in revaluation reserve
are transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing
buildings on which construction work has
not been completed and machinery pending
installation, is stated at cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, interest capitalised and other
direct costs capitalised during the construction
and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is
provided in respect of construction-in-progress
until the construction and installation work is
completed and put into use. On completion,
construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment.

The premiums paid to acquire land use rights
are recorded as prepayment for operating
lease, and are amortised using the straight-line
method over the period of the land use rights
of 50 years.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants related to assets are
presented in the balance sheet by deducting
the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of
the asset.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement
within general and administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for
trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against general and administrative expenses
in the income statement.
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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(b)

()

(d)

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as
employment costs when they are due
and are not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan. The fair
value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable.
It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nhominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for
bonuses where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Provisions for legal claims are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Subsidy income

Subsidy income represents the
discretionary subsidies granted by various
government authorities. It is recognised
when received.

Commission income

Commission income is recognised when
the total amount of revenue and costs
arising from the provision of services can
be estimated reliably and it is probable
that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow in and the
stage of completion of the services
provided can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduced the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and the continuous unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction
of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Other borrowing costs are expensed.
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is
not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance
contract) is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees
at inception, but perform a liability adequacy
test at each reporting date by comparing its
net liability regarding the financial guarantee
with the amount that would be required if the
financial guarantee would result in a present
legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference
is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
Mainland China. Most of the Group’s
transactions, assets and liabilities are
dominated in RMB, United States dollars
(*USD”) and Vietnam Dong (“VND”).
Foreign exchange risk also arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The
Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular review
and monitoring its foreign exchange
exposures. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk is mainly
attributable to its bank borrowings
denominated in USD. As the Group
management considers the possibility of
the depreciation of RMB in the coming
year is low, management does not
anticipate there will be any significant
foreign exchange risk associated with the
Group’s borrowing. As a result, the Group
did not use any financial instruments to
hedge its foreign exchange risk arising
from the Group’s borrowings.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
borrowings denominated in the relevant
foreign currencies.
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(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2007, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 4% against
the USD with all other variable held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB22,087,000 (2006:
RMB8,556,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of USD-denominated cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables and
borrowings.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Except for pledged bank deposits
(Note 14) as at 31 December 2007 of
RMB10,773,000 (2006: RMB14,397,000)
which was interest bearing at an effective
interest rate of 0.7% (2006: 0.7%),
the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from
the change in interest rates on interest
bearing assets.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises
from borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates in RMB expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
Group policy is to maintain approximately
20% of its borrowings in fixed rate
instruments. During 2007 and 2006, the
Group’s borrowings at variable rate were
denominated in USD.

As at 31 December 2007, if interest rates
on USD-denominated borrowings had
been 26 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been
RMB1,902,000 (2006: RMB1,558,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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(b)

()

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates on borrowings
and the Group has not used any interest-
rate swap to manage its interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of pledged bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets. The
Group has policies that limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, all
the bank deposits were deposited in the
highly quality financial institutions and
without significant credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group
also performs periodic credit evaluation
of its customers and believes that
adequate provision for doubtful debts has
been made in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group also has policies
in place to ensure that services are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to
the Group are disclosed in Note 18 to the
financial statements.
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(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance
sheet to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Group

EH

Group bS]

At 31 December 2007 R-B2tF
+ZA=+-H

Borrowings B8

Interests payments on borrowings (i) £ & ENFS ()

Trade and bills payables ENBSREEFUA

Other payables and accruals HibERFHIER
[T ER

At 31 December 2006 R-BEAE
t=A=t-H

Borrowings i

Interests payments on borrowings (i) EEEMFIE ()

Trade and bills payables REGES S

Other payables and accruals HibEREER
EFER

Company EAR

At 31 December 2007 R-Z2tH
+=A=+-A

Borrowings fEE

Interests payments on borrowings (i) EEREMFIE ()

Other payables and accruals HibERFIER
[T ER

At 31 December 2006 R-BEAE
t=A=t-H

Other payables and accruals HibERFHIER
et ER

(@)

Less than
1 year
PR-F

225,253

52,644
467,502
155,637

901,036

308,538

18,295
270,549
171,786

769,168

38,961
19,483

58,444

3,348

R IR R

BB ()

TRTBAZERARF RO
BREIN - LT RAEE S
MRS REREEREAOH
B RIS AT O - R
BHESARAMMEARIRNE
ERE HRBEMNTEL
R 1218 8 A2 B & 4
BEREKR@E -

Between 1 Between 2
and and
2 years 5 years

—FEMF MEEREF

179,292 523,292
48,108 63,290
227,400 586,562
6,560 197,898
4,647 13,311
11,207 211,209
132,714 447,259
38,961 44,566
171,675 491,825



(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(i) The interest on borrowings is
calculated based on borrowings
held as at 31 December 2006 and
2007 without taking account of future
issues. Floating-rate interest is
estimated using current interest rate
as at 31 December 2006 and 2007
respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.
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The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing
ratio within 30% to 50%. The gearing ratios at
31 December 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 18) G EBRE(H1:#18)
Less: Pledged bank deposits and ¥ : 2 IR TR
cash and cash equivalents R MReEFEEY

(Note 14) (Hiat14)
Net debt EH5FRR
Total equity R 4R
Total capital B4R
Gearing ratio BEAGBHE

The increase in gearing ratio during 2007
resulted from the increase in borrowings and
the borrowings were used for the business
expansion in Vietnam.

The carrying value less impairment provision
of trade receivables and payables are
a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The Group takes reference to professional
valuations over the fair value of buildings and
debentures and uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

AEERKREAEEERGBL RE
#30%%E50% M c R-EZLFER
—TEXRE+_A=+—HANEE
BELERNT ;

2007 2006
—EBELHF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANE¥TFT AREFIT
927,837 512,996
(210,388) (154,284)
717,449 358,712
1,075,751 861,649
1,793,200 1,220,361
40% 29%
R-EZLFEEBBLRENE
ZHRBEEFRBERMEZNEE
BFETIENN -

J& W B 5 5R0A I e FOR RO RR B
MERERBREAFHENS R
e BINESEME - MBAEN
RNEMBE TR S E R ERR
TAMBRATSNEBRARRE L
BenembatFh -

AEEE2EERETREBLIF
ENERME  TMASETER
RIBEEEE BB AT m R
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and residual values and
consequently the related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitors
action in response to sever industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives, and actual residual
values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore changes in depreciation
expenses in the future periods.
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Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. If there is
a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the income statement.

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade, bills and
other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. The
assessment is based on the credit history
of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use
of judgments and estimates. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectations
are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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As at 31 December 2007, the Group operated

in one business segment —

manufacturing and

sale of yarn, grey fabrics and dyed fabrics.
Accordingly, no analysis of the business

segment information is presented.

The Group operates in two main geographical
areas, Mainland China and Veitnam.

The Group’s sales is generated mainly within

Mainland China and Vietnam.

Sales

Mainland China
Vietnam

Other countries

Inter-segment sales

HER
B A RE
R

H A EIZ

s 2 S E

Sales is allocated based on the country in

which the customer is located.

Segment results
Mainland China
Vietnam

Other countries

Unallocated income less expense

Operating profit

REFBZELF+-H=+—H8 &
SEMRERE RO BE—RE
FHEHR  BMRREME - R
It WESFIEBEDRERDHT o

AEE T REPBEARERBREME

HIISAR o

AEBENHERTI 2R AHBEARRE

K e

2007
—BELHF
RMB’000
ARR T

3,254,074
45,185
371,947

3,671,206
(417,097)

3,254,109

2006
—EETRF
RMB 000
AREFTT
2,702,776
93,115

2,795,891
(128,675)

2,667,216

HERDRBEEPAEZBRMAL

2007
—ETLHF

RMB’000

AR¥T T

AR B K P 296,526
figEs] (3,943)
HARER 3,527
RES BB (16,818)
1 | 279,292

2006
—EETRF
RMB 000
AREFTT

242,734
(1,743)
4,806
(2,991)

242,806
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Segment results is allocated based on where
the operating profits arise.

RALG @R BMERAT
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B 5
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Total assets HEEE
Mainland China EalEip N7
Vietnam W

Other countries H bR
Unallocated assets REHBLEE

Total assets are allocated based on where the
assets are located.

Capital expenditure EXREX
Mainland China A B R B
Vietham fEs]

Capital expenditure is allocated based on
where the assets are located.

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book value are analysed as follows:

10250 E
HAHR B K

Leases of between 10 to 50 years
In Mainland China
Outside Mainland China

AR B ARE LA S M &

2007 2006

—EETLHF —EBERF

RMB’000 RMB 000

ARMTFT AREFr

2,082,873 1,689,803

459,927 131,010

27,369 6,840

74,961 2,247

2,645,130 1,829,900

BWEEBDNRBEEEME 2 A MY
fig o

2007 2006

—EELHF —ETRF

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥FIT ARETFT

193,134 221,764

309,057 11,445

502,191 233,209

BARXNRBEEMEZILT D

[

AEERLE RENESIERNEE
HERIR - AREFESTNT -

2007 2006
—ETtLHF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥ T AREFT
83,812 70,519
20,810 -
104,622 70,519
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Land use rights with a net book amount
of approximately RMB4,704,000 (2006:
RMB32,245,000) was pledged as collateral of the
Group’s bank borrowings (Note 18).

Opening F4

Additions NE

Government grants received B UK T B

Amortisation of prepaid operating A& ERENRIE
lease payment (Note 24) B (2724)

Exchange difference ME 5

Amortisation expense has been included in general
and administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2007, land use rights amounting
to RMB15,640,000 (2006: RMB5,421,000) consisted
of cost of RMB64,827,000 (2006: RMB38,330,000),
less related government grant of RMB49,187,000
(2006: RMB32,909,000) which was deducted from
the acquisition cost.

BREDFEANARE4,704,000T(=ZFF
NE - AR#E32,245,0007T) H) L A
T IERER S BIRTT B E e (P
i18) -

2007 2006
= i ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB000

AREFT ARETIT

70,519 56,098
52,178 26,336
(16,278) (11,020)

(1,070) (895)
(727) -
104,622 70,519

BB A REITHEAX

RN_ZEE+F+_A=+—8  LtifE
FHEEEAARE15,640,0000 (=2
N AR¥5,421,0007T) 0 B A
R#64,827,000C(Z T RF : AR
38,330,0007T ) ik 2= 16 I B AR 2N AR HRLAY
HERA AT B A R #549,187,000T(— &
TRE - AREE32,909,0007T) ©
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Group
rEE Machinery  Furniture Con-
and and Motor  struction
Buildings equipment  fixtures  vehicles in-progress Total
BT HBERRE FAR%E RE  ERIE b
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ANREFIT AREFT ARETT AREFI
At 1 January 2006 RZBBRE
-A-H
Cost or valuation A E 102325 353,362 4,654 8573 234555 703,469
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (7793)  (93,759)  (1490)  (2,112) - (105,154)
Net book amount REFE 94532 259,603 3,164 6461 234555 598,315
Year ended 31 December 2006 BZ-E5/E
T=B=+-H
LFE
Opening net book amount ENERFE 94,532 259,603 3,164 6,461 234,555 598,315
Acquisition of a subsidiary KENBAE 30,268 45,765 68 575 1,688 78,364
Additions e 5,223 37,699 4,075 3543 156,333 206,873
Transfers fL 82177 245397 = - (327574) =
Disposals (Note 32) L&MW H32) 1) (1,593) = (1,126) = (2,720)
Depreciation (Note 24) wEWH24) (7483)  (46417)  (1261)  (1,614) - (56,775)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 204716 540,454 6,046 7,839 65002 824,057
At 31 December 2006 RZZEXRE
T=B=+-H
Cost or valuation RASMEE 219,793 679,067 8,797 10,751 65002 983410
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (15,077)  (138,613) (2,751) (2,912) - (159,353)
Net book amount REFE 204716 540,454 6,046 7,839 65002 824,057
Year ended 31 December 2007  HZE-EB+%E
+=B=1+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount ENEmFHE 204,716 540,454 6,046 7,839 65,002 824,057
Additions e 2,894 33,147 3,055 935 409982 450,013
Transfers g3 80685 197,116 = - (286,801) =
Revaluation (Note 17) B (hi#17) 6,693 = = = = 6,693
Disposals (Note 32) L& H232) (1,744)  (8472) (64) = - (10,280)
Depreciation (Note 24) HEWH24) (8,726)  (60,369)  (233%2)  (1,112) - (72539)
Exchange difference EHEE (1,725) (5,228) (26) (18) (3,404)  (10,401)
Closing net book amount FIRRESE 291,793 696,648 6,679 7644 184779 1,187,543
At 31 December 2007 R-Z22tF
+-A=t-H
Cost or valuation KA E 315421 888,054 11,749 11409 184779 1411412
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (23,628) (191406)  (5070)  (3,765) - (223,:869)
Net book amount REFE 291793 696,648 6,679 7644 184779 1,187,543
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Buildings with net book amount of RMB291,793,000
(2006: RMB83,278,000) were stated at open
market value at 31 December 2007, based on a
valuation performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, an independent firm of qualified valuers.
The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred
income tax liabilities of RMB1,748,000, was credited
to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 17).

Depreciation expense of RMB65,526,000 (2006:
RMB48,981,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, RMB27,000 (2006: RMB825,000) in selling
and distribution costs and RMB6,986,000 (2006:
RMB6,969,000) in general and administrative
expenses.

Lease rental expenses amounting to RMB8,634,000
(2006: RMB3,960,000) relating to the lease of
buildings and machinery are included in the cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement (Note
24).

During the year ended 31 December 2007,
borrowing costs of RMB2,524,000 (2006:
RMB1,784,000) have been capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment, which represented
interest expense of RMB2,524,000 (2006:
RMB1,784,000) at an average capitalisation rate of
6.4% (2006: 6.9%) (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2007, property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB46,007,000 (2006:
RMB17,814,000) were pledged as collateral of the
Group’s short-term bank borrowings (Note 18).

Y EE

ﬁi%ﬁfﬁi BREEAREERITER

REETHNGEE  EEAFEAARE
291793000n<_7?/\¢ AR #&
83,278,0007C) WEFUR—_ZTZTLF
+ZA=+—BM@EEYE EHA
BINBEANECHTESHRABARE
1,748,0007T * 5F ABRAR R HY E (E 7
(MF5E17) ©

AR¥65,526,000C( ZFTRF : AR
148,981,000 MITERAS ERNIHEE
AR AR27000C( =2
NE ARBES25,000T) ITERYE
REHE Mo $HF S M A R %6,986,0007T
(ZEZRF : AR¥6,969,0007T) HHT
ERYER—MEITHREASFRZHE -

EHAAEFRESMNEASHAIOA
R%8,634,0007T(ZZTT/RF : ARKE
3,960,0007T) BIEFELR A IBmERAHEE
AR (F5E24) ©

REE-_ZTT+HE+_A=+—H1t
FE o BERARARKE2,524,0007T( =
TENFE AEM']JS&OOO%)E;@
N EME - WEREEZ 2D
FEEEFEENMERE4%(—ZTZ X
F :6.9%) (M5E26) st ERF SR A
R#2 5240000 ( T RF 0 ARE
1,784,0007T) °

ATZELHF+—F=+—HHYE -
B & &4 AR #46,007,00070( —F
TNE - ARK17,814,0007T) HR A A
EEEHRITERRER R (FFE18) -
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If buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, B F AR £ KAESER - B AN
the amounts would be as follows: ™
2007 2006
—BELHE ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AREFT
Cost PR AR 254,629 177,622
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiTE (18,547) (13,402)
Net book amount BREFE 236,082 164,220
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 WEEER-_TZE+F+=-_A=+—H
December 2007 of the above assets is as follows: R A S HER T AT
Machinery  Furniture Con-
and and Motor  struction
Buildings equipment fixtures  vehicles in-progress Total
BT HKRERRE HFAREE RE  HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AEEFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2007 R-BBtE
+-A=1+-H
At cost BEA - 888,054 11,749 11,409 184,779 1,095,991
At valuation - REE-R-BBLE
31 December 2007 n=H=1—H 315,421 - - - - 315,421
315,421 888,054 11,749 11,409 184,779 1,411,412
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 NEBER=ZZZTF+=-HA=1+—H
December 2006 of the above assets is as follows: RIS ES T AL T
Machinery  Furniture Con-
and and Motor struction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
BF HWERFE HRREE "E ERIR Feh
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000
AREFT NREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFIL
At 31 December 2006 RZZEXE
T=A=1+-H
At cost RAKA 119,446 679,067 8,797 10,751 65002 883,063
At valuation - EHE-R-_ZEREF
30 September 2004 NA=+H 100,347 = = = - 100,347
219,793 679,067 8,797 10,751 65,002 983,410
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Company
AN

At 1 January 2006
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation

Net book amount

At 31 December 2006
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposal

Depreciation

Net book amount
At 31 December 2007
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount
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R=-EZAF—H—H
RN
Ritine

FREDHE

BE-FT/AFT-A=+—HALFE
FRERE

//J NE

e

BRI FE
R-ZEERFE+=-A=1+—H
RN

RitinE

FREFE

BE-ZZtLFE+-A=Z+—-HLEE
E%}]ﬁﬁﬁ@@

NE

He

e

FREHE
R-B2LHF+=-A=1+—8
XA

REtifE

FREFE

Furniture and
fixtures

BRREE
RMB’000

AREFT
569
(108)
461
461
637
(308)
790
1,206
(416)
790
790
20
(64)
(196)
550
1,149
(599)

550
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Unlisted shares, at cost
Due from subsidiaries — non-current
portion (Note(a))

Due from subsidiaries — current
portion (Note(b))

Due to a subsidiary (Note (b)) FENTHI B A RIFIA
(Hiztmb))
Notes: Hiat -
(@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, (a)
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayments.
(b) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are (b)

BN A FE ET RS

FEUS BT B A Bk IE
—IERBIS
(H1it(a)

JRE W /BB 1 R FROR
—mRENERD (A7aZ (b))

unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

within one year.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in Note 37.

Company

BN
2007
—2EBLE
RMB’000
ARMF T

246,989

579,973

826,962

312,401

2,015

FEU T HT B X R RIE
SBRAT— EWEK

B

2006
—EBEREF
RMB 000
AEEFT

246,989

246,989
243,371

580

FEWHIE AR FURAEER 25 BE
BEIEERFH -

BB %

AREEE BB A B FHIEHNEEIT

ge



TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&EBIEReE

100

W—HA—HBEREE
=
el (faz)

Carrying value as at 1 January
Additions
Reversals (Note)

Wn+—RA=+—H
REE

Carrying value as at 31 December

Note: In 2006, the Group acquired the entire interest
of Yizheng Chemical Fiber Changzhou Daming
Company and consequently recorded a liability
of RMB98,578,000 payable to Yihua Group
Company, the seller, based on the accounting
recorded of Yizheng Chemical Fiber Changzhou
Daming Company. In July 2007, the Group
agreed with Yihua Group Company that the
aforementioned amount payable to Yihua Group
Company should be RMB58,796,000 (a reduction of
RMB39,782,000). Accordingly, the Group reduced
the amount of goodwill recognised by RMB888,000
and recorded the excess amount of the fair value
of net assets acquired of RMB38,894,000 as other
gain during the year ended 31 December 2007.

Share of net assets of unlisted DA ETHEEE D
associate (Note (a))

Goodwill (Note (b)) SR

W—A—HE@EE
Wi (f72235)
EE

DM

R+—-—A=+—8
IREEE

Carrying value as at 1 January
Acquisition (Note 35)

Capital contribution

Share of profit

Carrying value as at 31 December

Hrat

5

BEME(HiE(a)

B &E
2007 2006
—EELHF BT RF
RMB’000 RMB 000
NEMF T A REEF T
888 -
- 888
(888) =
- 888

TRZRTRE  AEERBEI AT

INKBAR R 2P - HIERBELTE
(L FEN KRB RTS8k - 15
HEEEE R E AR 98,578,000 T
WEE R-TT+FLAH - AEEH
FIEEBE QRS L EMECERA
A& RAME A A R#58,796,0007T G 4
AR#39,782,0007T) - At - HEZ
TTHE+_A=+—RHILFE K&
EEmREEeEn ARK888,000
7T eSS EEFEATEA
R#538,894,0007CH) % () & 2ERIHER A
H s o

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARMFTT AREFT
43,608 -

191 -

43,799 -
2007 2006
—EE+F “EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
28,119 -
12,311 -
3,178 -
43,608 —
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2007 2006

—EELF —EERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AEETT

Carrying value as at 1 January R—A—HEEE - =
Acquisition (Note 35) Wk (f17235) 191 -
Carrying value as at 31 December A+ —A=+—BEm@EE 191 -

Goodwill is attributable to Nantong Textile
Group Co., Ltd., which is considered to be
a single cash-generating unit (“CGU”). The
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined
based on the value-in-use calculations, using
a cash flow projections based on a three-year
financial budgets approved by management.
Management determined financial budgets
based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The
pre-tax discount rate used in the value-in-use
calculation is approximately 8%, which reflect
specific risks relating to Nantong Textile Group
Co., Ltd..

Name of the Place of Issued share
associate incorporation capital
BeEnTER EA LR BRITRA
RMB’000
ARETFT
Nantong Textile Group ~ Mainland China 95,385
Co., Ltd. HEIARE
HENSEREEN S
FBRAT

BETREBBHEIEREESERE
RAA] - ZARRIERBYRGELSE
f([REeEELEM])  BHEHNARES
BOREBEERABEAENEZRANE
EEAEN =FHMBRRESEEFELN
ReRnERAEE -BEERBEBE
AN E YIS RN EL 5
BE - EREEFE AR BNBAR
BERH 8% » R RHIE K R R E BB A A
EREESHEAERIRABNEER

B -

Proportion of
issued capital

held by the Group

AEEBEN Principal activities
BRITRALE FTEER

37% Manufacturing and sales of
top-grade textile knitting
products and garments

HERHERTORER
RER
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(d) The Group’s share of revenue, profit for the
year, assets and liabilities of associate which
are included in the consolidated income
statement and balance sheet using equity
method are as follows:

Revenue e

Profit for the year FE A

Non-current assets IEREEE

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities mEaE

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Raw materials R
Work-in-progress R
Finished goods SBIK o

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB2,819,358,000 (2006: RMB2,264,353,000).

The Group reversed an inventory provision of
RMB3,781,000 in 2007 (2006: additional provision
of RMB2,197,000).The amount reversed has been
included in general and administrative expense.

As at 31 December 2007, there were floating
charges over the inventories of RMB14,604,000
(2006: RMB60,207,000) to secure certain of the
Group’s bank borrowings (Note 18).

H R

(d) AESZEIIAGARIERRREER
BROAEESE WS - FEEN

A REE R B EE R A BN ER
T

2007
-
RMB’000
ARE T

38,996
3,178

101,718
48,150
(49,583)
(56,677)

43,608

2007
S e
RMB’000
ARKEFT

2006
—EERF
RMB’000
ARBFT

419,218
54,088
178,593

286,623
59,568
104,531
651,899 450,722
FERARARY2819,358,000C(—=
TNE  ARM2,264,353,0007T) FER
BRYITBEEHEERANA -

R-TT L ZKE@%@/\E%
3,781,0007C( Z TN « BIMEFE A
K #2197,00070) WIF EREHE - D&
BEIA—MREITHFEAS -

R_ZETEFE+_A=+—"8 " AR
#14,604,000 T (ZZZRF : AR
60,207,0007T) MFE B E AER
SEETRITEENER(MFE8)
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2007 2006
—EELHE ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFor
Trade receivables FEW B 5 5RI8 132,019 118,951
Bills receivable RN EEFIE 237,431 112,402
369,450 231,353
Less: provision for impairment B - FEMGRIERE
of receivables B 5 (4,618) (3,901)
Trade and bills receivables — net FEWE 5 & EIBEFIR
— 364,832 227,452

The fair values of trade and bills receivables are
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The credit terms granted by the Group to its
customers are generally within 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the trade and bills receivables were as

follows:

0 to 30 days 0HZE30H
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H
181 days to 1 year 181HE1F
Over 1 year 16 A

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers.

Included in the trade receivables were amounts
due from related parties of RMB4,485,000 as at 31
December 2007 (2006: RMB4,468,000) (Note 36).

W E 5 MEBRFIEN A FEZLER
HE -

AEERTHEFPONEEH KR R0H
A o [EIE 5 REB IR IRER ST
I

2007 2006
—EBLHF —EERX
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHFIT ARET T
287,068 176,974
38,459 31,126
32,277 15,076
2,401 2,616
9,245 5,561
369,450 231,353

HRAEEEEALETS - HEKE S
RAEETNEERR °

R-ZE+F+_A=1+—"HEKEZ
SREFRBERKBEIRBEAR
# 4485000 C(— T XF : ARK
4,468,000t ) (FizE36) °
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As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables of
RMB358,656,000 (2006: RMB224,658,000)
were fully performing. As at 31 December 2007,
trade receivables of RMB10,794,000 (2006:
RMB6,695,000) have the indication of impairment.
The amount of the provision was RMB4,618,000
as at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB3,901,000).
It was assessed that a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

91 to 180 days 91HZ2180H
181 days to 1 year 181HE1F
Over 1 year 15654 F

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB
United States dollars

AR
=7t

eSS

F=E

R_FEZELFF+_A=+—H AR¥E
358,656,000 T( —ZTZNF : AR
224,658,000 ) K FEE S FHIBE 2 &
e e A ZEZE+F+-_A=1+—H "
ARH10,794,0007T( —TTRF : AR
#6,695,0007T) 2 JEUWE S RIAE BR

A R=BELEL=A=1—8

B SR A ARK4618,000T(—EE

N ARB3,901,0007T) o KT 4HE

TR (D FE WK B ATk ) - % e R
FIERBRER AT ¢

2007 2006

—EELF “EERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANEB¥ T ARMTFT

3,115 932

2,306 2,002

5,373 3,761

10,794 6,695

NEBU TGS RNEKRE S RE
BEFOBREREEN T ¢

2007 2006

—EZTtHF —EERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARET T

336,898 211,617

32,552 19,736

369,450 231,353
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Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEW B B IR EREE BT -

2007 2006
—t —TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ARETT

At 1 January R—HA—H 3,901 3,277
Provision for receivable impairment S R TR (B A 717 624
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8H 4,618 3,901

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of trade and bills
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

Prepayment for purchases & & R HLHY

of raw materials FEfTFIE
Staff advances BT8R
Other receivables H fib e U FRIE
Value-added tax fERIBER
recoverable
Prepaid expenses B
Deposits Re

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

R R M R R BB E R R BB E S A
BERT R RITHAX

EA$#&¢EIHﬂ K%lﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ*jﬂ*,l
BRRBESREBRFBRFE - &
ElI?ﬂiHﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁuu{’E}ﬁ%

Group Company
F5E VN
2007 2006 2007 2006

B —TTRF ZBELE —TTHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEFT ANREFT AREFT ARETFT

63,036 75,779 - -
2,584 1,564 94 307

2,689 7,462 6 59
5,160 1,952 - —
1,703 4,077 608 366
3,268 7,265 9 =
78,440 98,099 717 732

BNRIE - e MEEBRIRN A
ERCOERMEE
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Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER
Cash at bank and in hand BORFERE

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits
was 0.7% (2006: 0.7%) per annum.

The average pledged bank deposits period for the
year ended 31 December 2007 is 75 days (2006:
75 days).

Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB ARE
United States dollars ETT
Hong Kong dollars BT
Vietnam Dong A
Others Hit

Group

s3]
2007 2006
—E2tE —TIAG
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARKETFT AREFT
10,773 14,397
199,615 139,887
210,388 154,284

e ISR YEE

Company
FAHE
2007 2006
—BBLE —TTAA
RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT

1,639 525

1,639 525

ETEE?EﬁfEﬂT ANBREERETF0.7%

(=

7

TIRE 1 0.7%) °

BE_TTLF+_A=1t—HLFE
FHEERRTERAR/ISA (TR

F:758)
BEEBIRITEER
FHEERNT -
Group
biy- 1 |
2007 2006
“EELE —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT AREFT
100,160 143,858
105,968 9,258
1,902 1,062
2,212 -
146 106
210,388 154,284

AR e RIREFEYH

Company
NG|
2007 2006
“EELE —TTRF
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

- 4

6 7
1,633 514
1,639 525
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Ordinary shares of

HK$0.1 each
EREEIABTHNZER
Number
of shares
REE
Note 000 HK$’000
Kt FAE FEIT
Authorised: VERE ¢
At 31 December 2006 and 2007 RZ-ZEZFNK
—ETLF
+=-—HA=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITMER
At 1 January 2006 and R-EEXE
31 December 2006 —A—HRK
R-ZBRE
+=-—A=+—H 872,000 87,200
Issue of shares upon exercise RATE BB AR 1%
of share options BIRG 16(i) 1,200 120
Issue of shares for acquisition RN /N
of an associate TR D 35 10,655 1,066
At 31 December 2007 R-EBZELHF
+=-—B=+—H 883,855 88,386
On 21 November 2004, the Company R-_EENFE+—A= + =
granted 4,342,000 options to certain senior ARAFBRBEERXARAZEESHEK
management of the Group under a Pre- EEHEIRE T ASE I%‘i& BE

IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
shares in the Company at HK$0.69 per share,
exercisable over the period from 9 June 2005
to 8 June 2008. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.

The fair value of options determined using
the Black-Scholes valuation model was
RMB433,000. The significant inputs into the
model were share price of HK$0.69 per share
at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 30%, expected life of options of 0.5
years, expected dividend paid out rate of zero
and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.88%. The
volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on
expected share prices over the year after the
Group’s initial public offering.

% 14,342,000 B HE - iR E
f%0.698 L 2 BIRREARR 2
7 EEREITR _ZEZRFEAN
ANBE-_ZZTN\FXA/\BHM
7 - REFWELERERET
LR & BB O S5 EREAE -

MAN = -SRI EERAEE
E’J@%Hxﬁé N FE A AR 433,000

c RBEMEBELE A NE
HjEHx{EtHXOGQ/’%E ittt
8 B EDRIZEE30% * &
HAPE PR #ECE H10.54F ~ FEHIRR B T
MR FETRBRFER2.88% °
T8 BB A% (& 0] SR AT 2AE 2 59 1R o iR A
EEBHAAHEERFTANTER
BONHE -
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Movements in the number of share options

R ARTTIE R AR B N B4R FE pnAe

outstanding and their related weighted average TR ENSEIINT
exercise prices are as follows:
2007 2006
“B2LHE —ZERF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HK dollar Options HK dollar Options
per share (thousands)  pershare (thousands)
FHTEE BRE TOTRE B
(BRET) () (BkKER) (F1n)
At 1 January n—BF—H 0.69 4,342 0.69 4,342
Exercised 217 0.69 (1,200) = =
At 31 December R+ZA=t—H 0.69 3,142 0.69 4,342

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution
passed on 21 November 2004, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (“the Share
Option Scheme”), which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years up to November
2014. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Company’s directors may, at their sole
discretion, grant to any employee, director,
supplier of goods or services, customer, person
or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group,
shareholder and adviser or consultant of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company
at a price of not less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of the offer of grant; or (ii) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; (iii) the nominal
value of a share. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme adopted
by the Group from time to time must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of
the Company in issued from time to time. At 31
December 2007, no options had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme (2006: Nil).
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BRER-_ZFTNF+—A=+—H
BBZBRERER  AAREHE
Ry — BRI &) ([ BRI T
2 REE-_Z—NmFE+—AIt
T E BB AR o IRIBERE
& ARREZRAEEBERT
fAEE - EF - ERRBHRE
BB BASERENR - B
Bk EMEM T EEAREE
R R AL BB EAARNE
FHE - ARBARGIRED - HWER
MERTIERSE » (\WEEEY
BHAEB RSB REXRAYE L
XU TI(E + (iR BEREEL
B HpT AR 5 B S B R
ERAHIE D FHKRTE
(i) EEE - 15 TR ERE
RENEHEREBS AT N o £
B HE ST B M AN S B RS R AN A (T
I E B ERESIA TR ERES
FITEEREE TER R ] T8
TR EE G5t TN EBIBA AT
TEEEEITIAR3Z0% - R-TE+
F+-A=1+—8  HEERER
BREREGEIEDL(ZTEERF
) o



Balance at 1 January 2007

Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options

Issue of shares for acquisition of
an associate

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

- gross (Note 7)

- deferred income tax (Nofe 19)
Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation

reserve to refained eamings

- gross

- deferred income tax (Nofe 19)

- deferred income tax in relation

to the change of income
tax rate (Note 19)

Profit for the year
Dividend relating to 2006
Currency translation differences

Balance at 31 December 2007

Balance at 1 January 2006

Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation

reserve fo retained earnings

- ross

- deferred income tax (Nofe 19)

Profitfor the year
Dividend relating to 2005
Dividend relating to 2006

Balance at 31 December 2006

Share
premium
RiafE
RMB'000

NEETT

RZE5LF-F-H
Rks
REEREE SRR

175,817

686
iGN eSS
12,218
BFERH
-%8 (W)
~BIEFER (Hi19)
BETITHE -
ERB[FEE
RARH
-IE -
~BRHEH (Hit9)
- SR
BENEL
FiEH (Wit9)

188,781
TR -
BE_TEAERE -
B ZH -

R-EELE+-A
=+-RiER 188,781
R-ZE E-F-H

i 175,817
BRTITHE -
BRE[RER

RARF

-I% =
- (Hi219) -

ERER -
BB-ZTTRFRE -
RB-TEERE -

RZEENETZA

=-RekEH 175,817

Capital
reserve (i)
BARHA()

RMB'000
NEETT

162,041

162,041

162,041

162,041

162,041

162,041

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LG BEBERAT)
—ETLEER

R BRI MR

Group
vy |
Statutory Revaluation Translation  Retained

reserves(iij  reserve  reserve  eamnings Total
EERE) EMRE  ENRE  REEA Nt
RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ANEETT ANBBTL ARKFT ARETR ARETR
79,667 29,466 - 31816 768,807

- - - - 686

- - - - 12,278

- 6,693 - - 6,693
- (1,748) - - (1,748)

31,504 - - (31504) -

- (2,043) - 2,043 -

- 521 - (527) -

- 1,359 - (1,359) -

Man 34,264 - 290469 786,716

- - - unmm B
- - - (35044)  (35044)
- - (7,688) - (7,688)

(IALA 34,254 (7.688) 493202 981,761
58,495 31,156 - 23963 663472
21112 - - (2172) -

- (2,218) - 2,218 -

- 528 - (528) -

79,667 29,466 - 216481 663472

- - - 19053% 190,536
- - - (5929)  (59,2%)
- - - (25905)  (25,905)

79,667 29,466 - 816 768,807
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Balance at 1 January 2007

R-ZTLF
—H— B

Issue of shares upon exercise of PA{T{FERERIER

share options

FITMAD

Issue of shares for acquisition of 3t UE&E AR

an associate BITRD

Profit for the year FEHEF

Dividend relating to 2006 BA-ZT FRE
Balance at 31 December 2007 H=ZZ+F+=A

_+ =NE0peS23

Representing: %

Reserves [

Proposed dividend R E

Balance at 1 January 2006

RZZTE—H—H

() #EER
Profit for the year FERA
Dividend relating to 2005 BEE-ZTRFERE
Dividend relating to 2006 BHE-ZT FRE
Balance at 31 December 2006 H—ZZF+_A
=+—AmEH
Representing: '
Reserves f#
Proposed dividend BERE
Notes:

()

(ii)

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the amount of share capital issued and the net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired.

According to the rules and regulations in Mainland
China and the articles of association of the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland
China, the Mainland China subsidiaries are required
to transfer not less than 10% of its after-tax profits,
as determined under the relevant accounting rules
and regulations in Mainland China, to statutory
reserves before the corresponding Mainland China
subsidiaries can distribute any dividend. Such
transfer is not required when the amount of the
statutory reserve reaches 50% of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ registered capital.

B &
Company
AN
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve(i)  earnings Total
ROEE BREREDH REBR et
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB’000
ANRETFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT
175,817 172,319 48,081 396,217
686 - - 686
12,278 - - 12,278
- - 74,686 74,686
- - (35,044) (35,044)
188,781 172,319 87,723 448,823
188,781 172,319 25,650 386,750
- - 62,073 62,073
188,781 172,319 87,723 448,823
175,817 172,319 61,006 409,142
- - 72,276 72,276
- - (59,296) (59,296)
- - (25,905) (25,905)
175,817 172,319 48,081 396,217
175,817 172,319 13,037 361,173
- - 35,044 35,044
175,817 172,319 48,081 396,217

()

(i)

CENC TR
RAMBEEFENER °

R BAREE R R FOER R A KB R
B KRR X 32 B RAMT /B8 A Bl VAR A S 72

AR - AR BRI A B A KT IR
B BEAEA B R R RERATER

R Tt 1200 1| AR S D M 0% 488 A K TE 7
{8 - BRI B AREM B A Al h AR 2
E o WAEHENSED EREMNER
RIRER A AR A050% R AR {= 1tk
e
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Statutory reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the corresponding subsidiaries,
to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’
production operations, or to increase the
capital of the corresponding subsidiaries. Upon
approval by resolutions of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings,
the corresponding subsidiaries may convert their
statutory reserves into registered capital and issue
bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to
their existing ownership structure.

Current L
— unsecured bank borrowings  — KRB ITE R
— secured bank borrowings —HERRITER
(Note (a)) (K15t (a))
— other bank borrowings —HMIRITER
(Note (b)) (H12(b))
Non-current FEENE
— unsecured bank borrowings  — KRR ITER
(Note (c)) (Biat(c))
— other bank borrowings —EAIRTTE R
(Note (b)) (K15# (b))
— notes payable — EHESHRIE
(Note (d)) (#f2#d))
Total borrowings BEHE

RALG @R BMERAT
“ERLEER

R BRI MEE

AT R IE R AR R AR R 2 Rl
18 JEFTARRE M & A A E AR AE ST AN
HEMBARRA - ZESHBMNER
AIRERPIRRA G FARZERESA - 18
AP 8~ 7] Bl A o HOA T (R R A R
MRS - 23R A B IR #O #5 B b 71 i 4%

FBITALR ©

Group Company
F5E b N

2007 2006 2007 2006
Z2ELE _TTRF ZBBRLE _TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT AREFT ARETT
32,753 13,507 - -
31,500 61,500 - -
161,000 233,531 - -
225,253 308,538 - -
486,752 64,428 398,141 -
34,000 140,030 - -
181,832 - 181,832 -
702,584 204,458 579,973 -
927,837 512,996 579,973 -
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Bank borrowings of RMB31,500,000 (2006:
RMB61,500,000) were secured by the followings:

(i) pledge of the Group’s land use rights
with a net book amount of approximately
RMB4,704,000 as at 31 December 2007 (2006:
RMB32,245,000) (Note 6);

(i) pledge of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a net book amount of
approximately RMB46,007,000 as at 31
December 2007 (2006: RMB17,814,000)
(Note 7);

(iii) floating charges over the Group’s inventories
with a net book amount of RMB14,604,000 as
at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB60,207,000)
(Note 11).

Other bank borrowings were secured by cross
corporate guarantees provided by certain
subsidiaries totalling of RMB195,000,000 as at 31
December 2007 (2006: RMB373,561,000).

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, chairman and an executive
director, has undertaken to maintain at least 30%
equity interest in the Company unless otherwise
agreed by the relevant bank in respect of the
provision of the unsecured non-current bank
borrowings.

Notes payable represents US$25 million guaranteed
notes, maturing in 2012. The notes payable bears
interest at 6.8% in the first year after drawdown and
at floating rate with reference to Deutsche Bank
Municipal Forward Rate Bias Index from second
year after drawn down till maturity.

R IR MR

Bt

AR#31,500,000C( ZFZTRF : A
R 61,500,000 ) &) #R1TE KA T 51
TH B 7EER -

iy AEBR=ZZFZTLF+=A
=+ —BEAN L HEBEDOR
HFEL A AR 4,704,000 7T
(ZZZTRF : AR%32,245,000
7t) (Hi5E6)

(i) AEBR=_ZFZTLF+=A
St REHENDE - BEK
RENEEFEOAARE
46,007,0007C( —ZEFRFE : AR
#17,814,0007T ) (FI&E7)

iy "EBR-_ZTZTLF+_-A
== Eﬁﬁ%ﬁgéaﬁﬁm
BREDFE L A AR M 14,604,000
T(ZEZTXNEFE: ARK
60,207,0007T) (Ff3E11)

HMEITERUE THB AR
RXRAAER RZTZTLF+=A
=+— B/ E A AR 195,000,000
(=TT XNF : AR¥373,561,000
JO) R o

FBRATEIHRUSALED AR IR
ISR SERN IR TTE RN B

RITAE  BRIRIERFELRR
AHRE#30% °
JE A B 5 IR R ——F 28

%pmpm%mmﬁ%m# ERES
REFEZHBTE68%HE  FEE
FEARZFE - AIREEEREBITHE
BT R (& 5 ir B A R AR =8 BUNZ 85T
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A
A

BAFS R M

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s borrowings were RZBZLF+-A=+—0H A5H
repayable as follows: EXREEZENT
Group Company
ARE AR
Bank borrowings Notes payable Bank borrowings Notes payable
RTRE EAESHR RiTiE EffEsTE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZRELE CTINE CRBLE CTISF CEBLE CTESE CEBLE I35
RVMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB0OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR NEETT ARBTT ARETT ARKBTL A\EETT ARRTR ARETT
Within 1 year 152/ 225253 308538 - - - - - -
Between fand2years 122F 179,292 6,560 - - 132714 - - -
Between 2and5years  225% 3,460 197898 181,832 - 205421 - 181,832 -
746005 512996 181,832 - 39814 - 181,832 -
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are BEEMREERATEEE
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
KM AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
“2ELE —TTRF ZBBLE —_TTHE
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT AREFT ARETRT AREFT
RMB ARE 226,500 236,000 - -
United States dollars E 701,337 276,996 579,973 -
927,837 512,996 579,973 -
The effective interest rates (per annum) at the REZEBER(F)FZEIAT

balance sheet date were as follows:

2007 2006
“ETLE ZETEF
UsD RMB USD RMB
E ARH e AEH
Bank borrowings RITEE 6.71% 6.41% 7.90% 5.83%
Notes payable [ERESFIE 6.80% - - -
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The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-

current borrowings are as follows:

Bank borrowings
Notes payable

The fair values of current borrowings approximately
their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting
is not significant. The fair values are based on
cash flows discounted using a rate based on the
borrowings rate of 7.29% (2006: 6.48%).

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing

facilities:

Floating rate
— expiring within one year
— expiring beyond one year

114

FERBEEZREENRA

eSS

F=E

FEMT

Carrying amount Fair value

fREE AYVE
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZE2RLF —TTNF ZBELE _TTRF
RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT ARETT AREFT
520,752 204,458 518,294 207,329
181,832 - 176,166 -
702,584 204,458 694,460 207,329
m%ﬁﬁzwaﬁ$iL'ﬁ§%§
ZRAFEOHRSNEREE - AFE

TR B ERNERT29% (ZTE/NF -

6.48%) ' RS REFRTE -
AEBMEUNTASHAEERE
2007 2006
—EELF —ETNRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥For ARMFor
FE)F %
— R —F R T 225,318 -
— R —F 123 H 229,876 109,322
455,194 109,322



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

RALG @R BMERAT
“ERLEEH

R BRI MR

RABGEAERNENANAHRAEE
LR AT IR BB R PS8 B[R]
—UREERER  REMEHEER
BESTHE - WHSTOT :

2007 2006
—EELFE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARMFor
Deferred tax assets: FEEFIREE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered  —#@12{& A&k E~
after more than 12 months BT IBEE (670) (758)
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered  —12f& A Ak E 2
within 12 months BIEIEA B (2,937) (3,121)
(3,607) (3,879)
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFHIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — @121 A&k E 2
recovered after more than EEHIBEE
12 months 11,078 11,216
Deferred tax liabilities — net FEEFIE B EFR 7,471 7,337
The gross movement in deferred income tax REFTIS IR EEH AT -
account is as follows:
2007 2006
—EELEHF —ETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥TF T
At 1 January R—HA—H 7,337 8,316
Income statement charged/(credited)  FiBzFINB (5t A)
(Note 27) (Hiz#27) 272 (451)
Credited to income statement then FSFARBETEREE
transferred to equity (Notes 17 and 27) HZE#EZ
(B517527) (1,886) (528)
Taxation charged to equity in relation to FtEFE L AR
the revaluation of buildings (Note17) | (WatE17) 1,748 =
At 31 December wnt+=-—A=+—H 7,471 7,337
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

At 1 January 2006
(Charged)/Credited to the
consolidated income
statement (Note 27)

At 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007

Charged to the consolidated
income statement (Note 27)

At 31 December 2007

Deferred income tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2006
Credited to the consolidated
income statement (Note 27)

At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 JrA—=

Taxation charged to equity in relation to the
revaluation of buildings (Note 17)
Credited to the consolidated income statement

(Note 27)

Credited to the consolidated income statement

resulted from the change of income tax rate

(Note 27)

At 31 December 2007
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e USRS

F=E

ENEBR—HIBARDAER RGEHR 2K
o ORERBEEENRBENFAZEE
L

RIEFTSHEE:
Temporary
differences in
respect of
provisions and
accruals
Tax losses HERERET Total
BEEFR BHAZERER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT AREF AREFT
R-ZEZ E—H—H 1,208 2,220 3,428
WA BRR (k) /
FTA (Hz27)
(450) 901 451
b—/\f =% /\E
+ZA=+—8k
“ET+5—-H—H 758 3,121 3,879
WA BaR Nk
(Hi227) (88) (184) (272)
RZTZE+F
+ZA=+-AH 670 2,937 3,607
BEFMBHARE
Revaluation
of buildings
BFEM
RMB’000
AREFT
RZZBEZNF—HA—H 11,744
FTARREEBREK (KHi727)
(528)
ZRF+-_A=+—HBK
—FTEF—H—H 11,216
HEFEHAERTIRTIE
(H1z£17) 1,748
FFASREEBER
(K1:%27) (527)
I% ST BB MET A
EBmk (K727)
(1,359)
RZEZLF+_A=+—H 11,078



Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of RMB317,000 (2006:
RMB89,000) in respect of losses amounting to
RMB3,171,000 (2006: RMB372,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income.
The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses was
not recognised as it was not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax of RMB527,000 (2006:
RMB528,000) was transferred from other reserves
(Note 17) to retained earnings. This represents
deferred tax on the difference between the actual
depreciation on buildings and the equivalent
depreciation based on the historical cost of
buildings.

Trade payables JERTE 570
Bills payable JET IR RRIE

Included in the trade payables were amounts due to
related parties of RMB1,366,000 as at 31 December
2007 (2006: Nil) (Note 36).

At 31 December 2007, the ageing analysis of the
trade and bills payables (including amounts due to
related parties of trading in nature) were as follows:

0 to 90 days 0HZE90H

91 to 180 days 91%2180H

181 days to 1 year 181BE15F
Over 1 year —FE

RALG @R BMERAT
“ERLEEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B #&sR&E Mzt

BB REEIEE 2 B EIEE
R EREEBRR ZERPR
FIZBEEHBFEAR - AEBIL
gt A FRH3,171,0007T (ZBE N F ¢
372,00070) W (A A E = 82k fE
RRBA)ERELEMEREEARE
317,000 (—ZET N4 : AR#89,000
TC) © BRI A i 4 R S FE SR AR AR ] AR
TEIRSE RIS B - MY BRI A
ESRAREFR BRI o

AR¥527,0007T(ZFTZRF « AR
528,0007T ) KR LTS HETY i EL A 4
(17 BRERERN - BAKRET
MERTEEZRBETNELKATE
EAERITE 2 MM EBHREHA

2007 2006
—gBLE  —TTAA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARETE
152,662 187,899
314,840 82,650
467,502 270,549

R_BEZE+F+_A=+—8 " FAE
B ZFIEAARE1,366,0007T(ZF
TRE BT R FEST EEEE T 2B (KRR
36) °

R-ZZLFE+-A=+—H  ERHE
SHRNFETIA(BEE S EE RN
AR 0 SRR M ERER AT IA T

2007 2006
—EBtLHF =ZEIS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
272,557 237,460
187,261 28,275
3,671 3,076
4,013 1,738
467,502 270,549
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Trade and bills payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
United States dollars =
Vietnam Dong fisd=a) =

Accrued wages and salaries &t T& & &

Interest payable FELT IS

Other accrual of expenses HABER B S7
Deposits from customers REES

Other deposits Hithiz &
Payables for purchase of BENE  BE

property, plant and equipment K SRIERENEER
Payable to former principal AN —=K

shareholder of a subsidiary MBARZAEE

resulting from an acquisition ~ JRE 7 ZE

Other payables HiEMAERR
Tax payables other than FEfIRIIE (%
enterprise income tax FTSHiBRAN)

Included in deposits from customers were amounts
due to related parties of RMB549,000 as at 31
December 2006 (Note 36).

The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of yarn, grey fabrics and
dyed fabrics. Sales recognised during the year
represented sales of goods, net of value-added tax.

ERNEZRANEETIANHERE R L

T
2007 2006
it S —EETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT ARETIT
453,793 228,399
9,475 42,150
4,234 -
467,502 270,549
Group Company
KM NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

“RRtE —TTF ZBELE _TTNF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARETT

38,756 18,991 200 -
15,184 813 14,436 -
21,176 9,494 2,832 2,768
14,013 12,841 - =

5,185 8,034 - =

26,375 15,608 - -

- 67,578 - =
33,452 32,044 - -
1,496 6,383 - -
155,637 171,786 17,468 2,768

ERPESBEBENR_ZEENE+ A
- BHNENBEBEAIRBEARE
549,0007T(F{5E36) °

AEETEXHRFERBEEYR K
ke FRCHERNEERE
MFRBERENEmEE °
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2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFT
Other income HAA
Return of income tax relating to BREEMREMRE
re-investment Fig %t 3,265 -
Subsidy income UL ON 18,408 17,365
21,673 17,365
Other gains/(losses) — net Hipzs (BE)
/?%,E\
Net foreign exchange loss (Note 28) bE i 518 88
(H1:#28) (3,813) (2,947)
Excess of the fair value of net assets  FTEEEEFES RN
acquired over cost of acquisition U BB HT 8 A BIR AR
of a subsidiary (Note 9) ZAFE (#1:E9) 38,894 -
Others EAth 8,028 1,191
Total other gains/(losses) — net Hiplezs(EE)
A — T 43,109 (1,756)
2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Changes in inventories of finished BIRK G R TE
goods and work in progress RRFEED) (68,582) (35,801)
Raw materials and consumables used  Fr R RAT#L K 4% 5 2,440,525 1,971,964
Employment costs (Note 25) BEKAK (Hit2s) 276,040 203,065
Depreciation and amortisation e Ry
(Notes 6 and 7) (Ht:6%7) 73,609 57,670
Office expense AR 30,206 30,095
Utilities B) ) SRR 167,565 125,543
Transportation B 57,265 41,776
Auditor's remuneration ZERN NS 3,820 3,516
Lease rental expense of buildings and 5 R %24
machinery (Note 7) Mz (B15t7) 8,634 3,960
Other expenses HpY 50,517 38,231
Total cost of sales, selling and SHEMRA - HE
distribution costs and general and RO HERZ AR
administrative expenses — R RITEFES 3,039,599 2,440,019
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2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANE¥ T ARMTFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - HMRIE4 240,779 172,447
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRKAS — REHRR
plans (Note (a)) =&l (Hfat(a) 15,884 13,883
Other welfare benefits (Note (b)) HAi@H (HE b)) 7,552 6,518
Other employment benefits Hitbfg EEF| 11,825 10,217
276,040 203,065
Notes: et -
(a) Pension — defined contribution plans (a) EBHK-REHMRD

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group has participated in state-
sponsored defined contribution retirement plans for
its employees in Mainland China. The Group and
the eligible employees are required to contribute
12% to 22% and 7% to 8%, respectively, of the
employees’ basic salary at rates as stipulated by
the relevant municipal governments. The Group
has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. For
the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
contributed approximately RMB15,808,000 (2006:
RMB13,807,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored
retirement plans. As at 31 December 2007, the
Group was not entitled to any forfeited contributions
to reduce the Group’s future contributions (2006:
Nil).

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong
Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident fund legislation, and
both the Group and the employees’ contributions are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, the Group contributed
approximately RMB76,000 (2006: RMB76,000) to
the MPF Scheme.

BEFBARERBKERATE @ A5
EAEPHEAREEESLHEHARENNTE
BEIFRAKE  AEBRAEKES
AN RIEEERFTEN12%ZE22% K%
T%ZE8%EH N + LR A B EMEAT
BE - BRULBFEEHERIN  AEEHE
FMER RS T SR AR BEF RIE
BEEEMAE - RIKEB A RIK
SRR BEREBRIRGTEIRE - &
E_TTHE+_A=+—BHULEE -
AEEE L B R E R AR5 B
R AR ¥ 15,808,0007T (Z T E N
& : AR%13,807,0007T) c R=-ZT T
+HE+-—A=+—0  KEEAEES
DL W R R DURIE A S B B
BRER(ZTTNE  8) °

AEBMELRHERBEB L MBHIERTE
SErEI([REETED - BREBIE
TABTENARATEZE - KRBT
2 AEERESNBEREEMELS
R FE & 5 B FT R E KB B URA 5% (A
FER - AEBREERARES
A1,0008TH LR - BREZZTTLF
+—A=+—BLLFE  AEERRTE
SEFEERHARKT6,0000 (=
N AR¥ET76,0007T) ©
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Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other welfare benefits

All of the Group’s employees in Mainland China
participate in employee social security plans,
including medical, housing and other welfare benéefits,
organised and administered by governmental
authorities. For the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group contributed approximately RMB7,552,000
(2006: RMB6,518,000) to these plans.

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director for the year
ended 31 December 2007 is set out below:

Fees Salaries

Name of Director EEnS HE ey
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT

Executive directors WTES
Hong Tianzhu HERAR = -
Zhu Yongxiang KoK = 720
Gong Zhao ER = 382
Tang Daoping #E T = 360
Independent non-executive BV IFHITEE
directors
Ting Leung Huel, TRE
Stephen 160 =
Cheng Longdi R 69 -
Zhu Lanfen REH 69 =

298 1,462

Hiet - (&)

(b)

(c)

1

HitmR
REERFREAENAREB2HE
B ERETE - ZTEBEHBUT
HEZBREZENER EEREAM
BH  BE-_ZTTLtF+=-_A=1—
BIEEE - AEER B EERIOA
R#7,552,000c(ZTTRF : AR
6,518,0007T) °

EShEREEEHS
HE_ZTTtHF+_A=+—HILFE
BN TELEENMSIT

Employer’s
contribution

to pension

Other scheme

Bonuses benefits (i) B3 Total
AL HtERG) EEHX @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

= 905 18 923
800 12 18 1,550
400 12 18 812
720 12 18 1,110

= = = 160

= = = 69

- - - 69
,920 941 72 4,693

121



TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x& B 73R

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director for the year
ended 31 December 2006 is set out below:

Name of Director
Executive directors
Hong Tianzhu BRI
Zhu Yongxiang RIKFE
Gong Zhao R
Tang Daoping #ET
Independent non-executive
directors
Ting Leung Huel, TRE
Stephen
Cheng Longdi TRER
Zhu Lanfen K%

EEng

HITEZR

BIUFTES

Fees

ik
RMB’000
AREFT

172
74
74

320

Salaries
e
RMB’000
AREFT

666
720
382
360

2,128

(i)  Other benefits represent housing allowance
and other social security benefits. Those social
security benefits mainly include medical and
unemployment insurances and are organised
and administered by governmental authorities
in Mainland China. Contributions to the plans

are expensed as incurred.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during

the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil).

(d) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four (2006:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one (2006: one) individual

are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances

Bonuses

Pension cost — Defined contribution

plan
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BEARF ¢ No2ah
TEAT
BRE-—R

HHEE

HiiFE : (&)

(c) EERSREEBEME(E)
HE_ZTRF+_A=+—HIFE
J*H%tu§$E’JMiQDT-

Employer’s

contribution

to pension

Other scheme
Bonuses benefits (i)  EB{RkatE Total
AL HBERG) EEHX @zt
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
- 307 18 991
480 12 18 1,230
340 12 18 752
600 12 18 990
- - - 172
- - - 74
- - - 74
1,420 343 72 4,283

(d)

s

() EHoBRMRKKREEZMREMT
BRERA o HEHLSRERF
TECEEERTERE - THH
REAREZRIRBEBEE
B o B EHBIZHRTIREL
B2 ©

REBE_ZTLF+_A=+— EJJ:¢
EXEEERBERBENHS(ZTF
NE ) -

fUREHFMAL

WAFE  AEBRUFHFH RS ALE
RO (ZTTRE : Of) RES - H
MEE RN EX2FHDHT AR o B

FTHRT L (ZZZTRF : —f)ALZ
& T

2007 2006

—EELF ZETREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWFT AEBTFT

892 100

200 939

1 12

1,103 1,051



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest expense — bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

Less: amount capitalised in property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)

Exchange gain on financing activities
(Note 28)
Finance costs

Finance income — Interest income
on short-term bank deposits

Net finance costs

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidation

income statement represents:

Current income tax

— Mainland China enterprise income tax

Deferred income tax (Note 19)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group had no assessable
profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong

during the year (2006: Nil).

RAHEEERAT

2007
—ReLE
RMB’000
AR¥For
R AEFREBREEN
RITERN B 60,282
Ji N S R AR
B RE(HL7) (2,524)
57,758
B R EIE H U
(K17#28) (34,301)
W 23,457
B TSI — 52 BF
AT R S A (3,594)
B TS B A F 5 19,863

2007
—ReLE

RMB’000
AREFT

= HIFS N — R BARE
EERPEH
EIEFRISTR (K72 19)

26,444
(1,614)

24,830

“ERLEEH

R BRI MR

2006
—TETX

— ==

RMB’000

AREFT
40,235
(1,784)
38,451
(6,008)

32,443

(4,431)

28,012

REFABRERTFOHASRNOT

2006
“TEX

RMB’000
ARETIT

25,237
(979)

24,258

PR A SR B G O R B A
FEAERRORT] - BT BB
FTAG ) o

SERELBE(ZTE
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The subsidiaries established in Mainland China
are subject to EIT at rates ranging from 15% to
33% during the year.

Except for Texhong (China) Investment Co.,
Ltd., all other subsidiaries of the Company
established in Mainland China, being wholly
foreign owned enterprises, have obtained
approvals from the relevant Mainland China
Tax Bureau for their entitlement of exemption
from EIT for the first two years and 50%
reduction in EIT for the next three years,
commencing from the first profitable year
after offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried
forward from the previous years in accordance
with the relevant tax rules and regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises in
Mainland China.

Texhong (China) Investment Co., Ltd., being
an investment holding company incorporated
in Mainland China, it is subject to Mainland
China enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

The National People’s Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the new “CIT Law”)
on 16 March 2007 and the State Council
has announced the Detail Implementation
Regulations (“DIR”) on 6 December 2007,
which has become effective from 1 January
2008. According to the new CIT Law, the
income tax rates for both domestic and foreign
investment enterprises have been unified at
25% effective from 1 January 2008. However,
for enterprises which were established before
the publication of the new CIT Law and were
entitled to preferential treatments of reduced
CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the new CIT rate may be gradually increased
to 25% within 5 years after the effective date
of the new CIT Law. For the region that enjoys
a reduced CIT rate at 15%, will gradually
increase to 18% for 2008, 20% for 2009, 22%
for 2010, 24% for 2011 and 25% for 2012
according to grandfathering rules stipulated
in the DIR and related circular. Enterprises
that are currently entitled to exemptions or
reductions from the standard income tax rate
for a fixed term may continue to enjoy such
treatment until the fixed term expires.

AR B K BE AR 37 A B B A BB &R
NIE 1 E TSI E15% 2 33% 84N
TSR

BRARUL(PEDIRERR AR - A
R BT E A A B R FE AR S RO B
BRREYRINEBELE  SRIE
ERRPBEAREINE REOF N
ERANRRE - MSEAPBEARRE
MR A - ARENEHEME R
EFEEEBNMARIHENER
BREEENFEEE  LEEEMS
HME KR =FRERETRLE

R (FE)REERAR RN E
AR 2 B R AT - B
FA5% AN B AR FER EFTIS L ©

R-BEZLFE=A+/"H 2EA
RREAXSEBHEARLME D
¥mMERA(THEEMERIADM
BERIIR —_EEtF+ AN
B S84 15151 & e 408 B ([ 16:45) & e 4
all) wea—E=N\F—HA—H
RBAER - RIBFEEMBRE - A
HWRINECENFEREEA-Z
TN\FE—H—B#EE—A25% R
M BRI ESFR EABMAR
MW EFEBHSEER T ReS
EMESHREERENLCENS @ #
EFTSH R AR B IR EATSH
SRR Z 1B 55 NIX BT 25% o
RS AEFIE e R R AR RS
R BWSTR]  ZHMBEHERE
(FRZE5B15%) MR - SEFREH
KEABN—_ZTT)N\FE - —TTH
£ ZFT-TFE —F——FK=
T——FHREHEMNE18% * 20% *
22% ~ 24% K 25% o B RIB R —
B EE SIS RN R
SORENTE  EEZEXET
B BEEZBRETHRERAL -



The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted
from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.
The Company’s subsidiaries established in the
British Virgin Islands were incorporated under
the then International Business Companies
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and,
accordingly, are exempted from payment of
British Virgin Islands income tax. No provision
for Macao profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or
derived from Macao during the year (2006:
Nil). The Company’s subsidiary established
Vietnam is loss- making in 2007, therefore
they was not subject to Vietnam income tax in
2007. (2006: Nil)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in
the respective countries

Effect of tax exemption/reduction

Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no
deferred income tax asset
was recognised

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Change of income tax rate in
respect of deferred taxes

Income tax credit granted for
qualified purchases of
domestic equipment

BR PSR A E A

123 P RME B Bl 2K
BRBREN
BB RETE 2 HIA

BIE#%, e

OLIEE 1753

REHERBIEPTISTH
BEZHIEER

BABEARTER
TIAE 18
EETIAE R R
BHoPE
IEEAER

M REZ

iRt iine)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was

29% (2006: 32%).
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ARRIRBEFREHESARERHE
HEEMKRZ RERRBR AR
At ARBAERCBRRESHE
AT - RRAINEBRLAEK
MEMEB A RIRABE AR E R
BB R A RDAREMACL - FE &
HEBARBRELESMEMR - B
RASBERNFAAEARPIEET
I ERB A - I BRI
BUEL BB (—TTRF - H) - K
NEREREKZOMNBARNR -F
FLEHEBEER AR -_FF+
FHAGNYRAMAEHR - (ZFF
N )

5= B ER B AE F RO B SRR IR
RRARE BRI R I F R E
AEZEWERNR 220 ¢

2007 2006
—BBtE  —TTAF
ARBTZ  ARKTE
262,607 214,794
74,875 67,933
(50,795) (42,326)
1,881 5,378

317 89

(89) _
(1,359) _

- (6,816)

24,830 24,258

INEFHERFE 2% (ZTF
INEE 32%) °
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The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the
income statement are included as follows:

Other gains/(losses) — net (Note 23) Hipdezs (E18)

(H1:£23)

Finance costs (Note 26) M5B R (K726)

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of approximately
RMB74,686,000 (2006: RMB72,276,000).

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Profit attributable to equity holders Zx2A FIAR#ERSH A

of the Company (RMB’000) FEAG 5 A
(AE®TFr)
Weighted average number of BEITE B
ordinary shares in issue INETFIHEL
(thousands) (LAF&H)
Basic earnings per share FREARZF]
(RMB per share) (BRARE)

RIEZmK(NBR) GIAZRBREERRE
FELATIAR -

2007 2006

—EELF —EEREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFTT

— 35

(3,813) (2,947)

34,301 6,008

30,488 3,061

ARG REFEABRGERAIOARE
74,686,000 L(Z T NF : AR
72,276,0007T) B 5T AR R B B 7% R &K
ﬁq °

FRERBFUARRBRBREREA
FE@?UMLAEWE%’*TT R
IO BETE

2007 2006
—ETtHF —EERF
237,777 190,536
874,842 872,000
0.27 0.22



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Diluted earnings per share is calculated
adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all share options. For the share
options, a calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined
as the average annual market share price of
the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.

Profit attributable to equity holders ZRA FIIRHERH A
of the Company (RMB’000) FE(R R
(AR®TT)
Weighted average number of BEETEBER
ordinary shares in issue e E
(thousands) (LAFET)
Adjustments for share options A AR (E A9
(thousands) FAEE(LATFE)
Weighted average number of REstE g ic#ss
ordinary shares for diluted B e B A g
earnings per share (thousands) BHEATFED
Diluted earnings per share BREERT
(RMB per share) (BIRARE)

RALG @R BMERAT
“ERLEER

R BRI MEE

BREERNIZREERHITER
BB oD B0 hNAE 9 BEHE - AR
PR B SR - pEBAET
5 RHRRITERB AT R AR
MERBEREEFENEE AR
RNFEUARRB R FEFEED
GRERE) WENRMEE - X
1 EAET BTS2 A HE %
TR BB (RREERED BT
E) LS -

2007 2006
—BBLE A
237,777 190,536
874,842 872,000
1,572 2,470
876,414 874,470
0.27 0.22
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The dividends paid in 2007 and 2006 were
RMB35,044,000 (HK dollar of 0.04 per share) and
RMB85,201,000 (HK dollar of 0.095 per share),
respectively. The directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.075 per ordinary share,

totalling RMB62,073,000. Such dividend is to Zh%

be approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 16 May 2008. These financial

statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Interim dividend paid of nil

(2006: HKDO0.03) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of
HKDO0.075 (2006: HKDO0.04)
per ordinary share

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

— Amortisation

— Depreciation

— Share of profit from an associate

— Excess of the fair value of net
assets acquired over cost of
acquisition of a subsidiary

— Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (see below)

— Finance costs — net
Changes in working capital

(excluding the effects of acquisition

and exchange differences
on consolidation):

— Inventories

— Trade and bills receivables

— Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

— Trade and bills payables

— Accruals and other payables

Cash generated from operations

128

EfFHIRE tﬂx

BET(ZF /\E :

0.03/87T)
FhR R BARR B AL

f%0.075%8 (==

ZRE  0.0487T)

R B8 BLAT R

B TR

— 3

—HE

— DEE A AR

— AR E
NI NG
A FAA

—HEME  FER
RBEARTX)

—BIBER 5
WEESE
(IR B A R B
CEREEOTE
BRI -

— 175

*f%%%&mﬁm

—FB0E - 512 R
AR HOR

— RS REER

Wyl

LEMRERE

0.075/87T -

2007
—getE
RMB’000
AR T

62,073

62,073

2007

S
RMB’000
AREFT

262,607

1,070

72,539
(3,178)
(38,894)

312
19,863

(201,177)
(137,380)

19,659
196,953
(1,505)

190,869

mEMEE

RIBEELFR_TTRNFREZRE
2Bl A A R #35,044,0007T (FA%0.0475
7T) & AR #85,201,0007T (4/%0.0957%
JU) c EEEFBIKE R ESR TR
g /\)\Em%ez 073,0007T °
ERN-EENERAT+ANAREITZ
Hxiﬂiﬁmﬁﬁxzﬁtt/& ZEUTS
R AR R B S o

2006
—EERF
RMB’000
AREFT

25,905

35,044

60,949

2006
—EERF
RMB’000
ARBF T

214,794

895
56,775

849
28,012

(151,433)
(61,120)

(45,731)
91,714
(34,869)

99,886
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In the cash flow statement,proceeds from disposal RESRER  HEVE  BEREXRE

of property, plant and equipment comprise: HFTEZIEEIE -
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEETRR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR TFr
Net book amount (Note 7) REVFE(ME7) 10,280 2,720
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - BE K&
plant and equipment H iR B (312) (849)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment RAERI TS FRIR 9,968 1,871

The Group had contingent liabilities not provided for
as follows:

Government grants obtained from

the Management Committee of EELZEEH
Taizhou Economic Develop Zone NEdiSgE )

During the year ended 31 December 2002, Taizhou
Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary, acquired a plot of land in Mainland China
for RMB26,289,000 and paid RMB4,400,000, with
the remaining balance of RMB21,889,000 covered
by government grants. The Group has obtained a
confirmation from the Management Committee of
Taizhou Economic Development Zone, Jiangsu
Province, that the amount of RMB21,889,000
represents grants to Taizhou Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd. by the Management Committee
of Taizhou Economic Development Zone, Jiangsu
Province, and such an amount had been settled by
the Management Committee of Taizhou Economic
Development Zone, Jiangsu Province, with the
relevant Land Resources Bureau of Taizhou City
and the Group will not be responsible for the
payment of such an amount. However, in case that
the Management Committee of Taizhou Economic
Development Zone, Jiangsu Province, is not the
appropriate authority responsible for the settlement,
the Group may be liable to pay the balance of the
acquisition cost amounting to RMB21,889,000.

REBARIEREBOIABENT ¢

Group

TEE
2007 2006
—BBLE  CTTAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFT

KB FMNEEFRER

21,889 21,889

REBEE2E_EZ-_F+-_A=+—HIF
g 2BWBARRINT L RIS
IR A& A A R 26,289,000 7T # A —
BB AR L - EXARE
4,400,0007T © #23XA K %21,889,0007C
N BMA S - AEEBEIHE SR
MEERBEREEEZEQRER  ZAR
121,889,000 7T & T & & T )N 48 75 7 2%
RERZESHR TRMELKRINES
RARIMEN  IHAFTMNEERER
TIEZEEERBBEORMM LE
REBERBYNZERE  AEBBTE
B ZERE - A - HTERE =M
REREREEZEEWIFTMZER
HREERE  AEERASFKE
AANHY #REE A R #£21,889,0007T °
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The Directors of the Company and the management
of the Group anticipate that no material liabilities will

arise from the above contingencies.

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date

but not yet incurred is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for
Authorised but not contracted for

e IR
ERTANE R
EREERETL

The Group leases various land, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

No later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years
Later than 5 years

130

—FR
—FRERFA

hFR

AN/N T%%&ZKEIE’JEEE%EEHL?JI
IARFBIGELETAEE

REEANERRS(BEREL)R
LU

2007 2006
—ERLHF —TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETT
220,514 75,513
39,605 207,178
260,119 282,691

AEBRBE A REEKEEE
mEETRAN L  PRERE
B ZEHEE2EN  #AEEASZ
R R ERENEE TR o

RETABHELEHEZ RR&E

HEFIBERENAT ¢
2007 2006
—EBELHF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFT
7,954 2,552
14,387 9,089
77,150 79,024
99,491 90,665



During the year, Texhong Textile Nantong Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
37% equity interest of Nantong Textile Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Nantong Textile”) from Hong Kong Tin Hong
Industrial Limited, a company controlled by Mr.
Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director and Chairman
of the Group. The consideration was satisfied by
the issue of 10,655,173 of the Company’s shares
with a quoted market value of RMB13,310,000
at the completion date and the payment of
RMB 15,000,000 in cash.

Details of share of net assets of the associate
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

RALG @R BMERAT
“ERLEEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B #&sR&E Mzt

FR - ARR2EMB R RIS
BARARNREERITEEZER AR (H
ANEBRITESFEIE LRI EER
NGB EEdeap bt el e SE Py rE
RAE([F@BEE])37%MHE - KB
2%1710,655,173[% A2 &) i 15 (R 52 B
HAFT AV TH{E A A R#13,310,0007T) &
"4 AR%15,000,0007T52 1 ©

DA FTUEE 2 Bk A R B BEFHE A RS
BB

2007

—EBELHF

RMB’000

AR¥TFT

Purchase consideration paid in cash AR S 2 WER(E 15,000
Shares issued BT D 13,310
Total purchase consideration Wi RE 28,310

Fair value of share of net assets DMEFMRBEEFE ATE

acquired — shown as below —HRTX (28,119)
Goodwill EES 191

The share of net assets arising from the acquisition is
analysed as follows:

Non-current assets IEMBEE
Current assets MEVEE
Non current liabilities ES e UN=E=
Current liabilities mEasE
Net assets BEFE

Interest acquired

Share of net assets acquired

B 2 F18
DMEFRIEEEFE

DMEWBELNEEFEINWT

Carrying
amount Fair value
BREE ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT AR¥TFT
255,724 259,912
119,460 119,460
(153,180) (153,180)
(150,197) (150,197)
71,807 75,995
37%
28,119
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New Green Group Limited (incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) owns 44.7% of the
Company’s shares. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the
principal shareholder of New Green Group Limited,
and has a beneficial shareholding of 54.7% in the
Company through his own capacity, New Green
Group Limited and another company. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang has a beneficial shareholding of 17.6%
in the Company. The remaining shares are widely
held.

The Company’s directors and the Group’s
management are of the view that the following
companies/individuals are related parties of the

B E

New Green Group Limited ( 7 ZH &
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi)%ﬁ$ Al B 19

B 44.7% ° 3t X %k &£ % New Green
Group Limited W) = Z R - HEB/H
N & & 15  New Green Group Limited
RE—HARE=EEARNRAINS4.7%
BRAE - RAKHAEEESHEBAR AN
17.6% %4 - B2 THIR(D B2 5 IR T
BAL -

ARRBEERAKENEEER R T
RE AT RASEERER T -

Group:

Name of related party
B B8

Hong Tianzhu

HR

New Green Group Limited

Hong Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited
BERMIERERAR]

Nantong Shuanghong Textile Co., Ltd.
FEEEIHBmARAR

Tianhong Printing and Dyeing (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

RUCENZE (35 ) AR A A

Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.
BRI EE N B EER AT

Relationship with the Group

SEAREEHIBAR
Director
=

Shareholder
A&

Controlled by Hong Tianzhu, a director

HESHRIZES

Controlled by Hong Tianzhu, a director
EE%%//\%ZR? %U

Controlled by Hong Kong Tin Hong
Industrial Limited, a company controlled by
Hong Tianzhu, a director
EE%I.S ?EH%:T:%EI?E’AT (BFEHRIUEHE
AGIDEZ

Associate company of Texhong Textile
Nantong Investment Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company

RRTFIME A RRI A R EIREBR AR

)l /NC]



RAHEEERAT

“ERLEEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B #&sR&E Mzt

The Group had the following significant transactions RNE B HEE B T T IEAR SN

with its related parties, as follows

Sales of goods:
— Tianhong Printing and Dyeing
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

Purchases of goods
— Tianhong Printing and Dyeing
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

‘|T
2007 2006
—EBELHF TETRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T
HEEM
— RUTENZR (4255)
BRAA] 28 499
— B IR R E
AR AT 4,185 140
4,213 639
2007 2006
—EELFE —EER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AE#F T
BEEM
— RUTENZ (#E455)
BRAH] 681 2,973
— B R
SBRGEBAERAT 2,841 1,564
3,522 4,537

In the opinion of the Company’s directors and
the Group’s management, the above related
party transactions were carried out in the
ordinary course of business, and in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements
and/or the invoices issued by the respective
parties.

ARRBERAEENEREER R L
HEAM TN ZDNABEBBET R
REAEBROGRE, IR BEES
BHA BT -
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The Group had the following significant

balances with related parties

Trade receivables from related

FEUBARE T EVE B

parties (Note 12) SKIB(HTaE12)

— Tianhong Printing and Dyeing ~ — RUETENZ(fE45)

(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. BRAT]

— Nantong Textile Group —FB IR E
Co., Ltd. R ERAT]

Trade payables to a related

FERARE HEVE 5

party (Note 20) FIB(K75E20)
— Nantong Textile Group —FEE IR EE
Co., Ltd. HBABRDF]
Deposits from a related party REME RG] 2
(Note 21) (K1z#21)
— Nantong Textile Group —FB IR E
Co., Ltd. A ER AR

The balances with related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable within one year.

On 11 July 2007, Texhong Textile Nantong
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire 37% equity interest of
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. from Hong
Kong Tin Hong Industrial Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive
Director and Chairman of the Group. For
details of the acquisition, please refer to Note
35 of the financial statements.

&R B BB T B KA ERIA T

2007 2006
—BBLE  —TTAA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARETT
3,967 4,327

518 141

4,485 4,468
1,366 =

- 549

RN T AR AR - 2R R
R —FRIERE -

W\

R=ZZ2+Ft+H+—H AAaH
2EMBRARRILSBEBERA
AT — AW BT - MEBRIL
BEXERAR(HAKREHITES
FREFBHRRREEEBRE AR M
BrBRHBERERSHEAER A
A37%AHE - BAWBHFHIEHS
BB T 3R R FTREIS5
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RAHEEERAT

2007

—EELEF

RMB’000

ARMTFT

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERMEA 6,137
Pension cost (defined BRIRERA(RE

contribution plan) HIRETED) 122

Other employment benefits Hib g 5&7 1,050

7,309

The following is a list of the significant subsidiaries

“ERLEEH

R BRI MR

2006
i
RMB’000
ARETT

4,898

131
295

5,324

UTRIN -_ZBELF+-A=+—H

at 31 December 2007: WEAMBEAF :
Place and date of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and kind and place of issued share capital
of legal entity operations or paid-in capital
Name HMALBER TEREBR BETRAS Interest Note
t# R ERERER EENE BABRARHE 1 it
Directly held-
ERKE-
Texhong Textile Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 100 ordinary 100%
26 May 2004 British Virgin Islands shares of
limited liability company USD1 each
AIGHERERAA RERLEE REBRLEE 100k 100%
“ZERERAZ T/ REER BR1ZET
ERELAT 2Rk
Texhong Textile Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of 100%
9 December 2004 British Virgin Islands USD1
limited liability company
MIGHRERRA RERLEE RABRLEE 1% 100%
“ZIMET_ANA REER BRET
RREMAR Bk
Sunray International Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of 100%
21 January 2005 British Virgin Islands UsD1
limited liability company
FHERERERAA RERAES RABRLHE 1% 100%
“EERE-A-+-A K& FFET
EREAAR LER
Texhong Vietnam Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in USD50,000 100%
6 Sep 2006 British Virgin Islands
limited liability company
REERERRAA RRRAES REBRLES 50,0007 100%
“ERENARE RERR
BREMAA

135



TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name

&R

Indirectly held-
e

Texhong Textile (Taizhou) Co., Ltd.

KI5 (ZN) BRAR

Texhong Textile (Suining) Co., Ltd.

XIgg (B2) ARAA

Taizhou Texhong Weaving Co., Ltd.

FNRIBERRAA

Zhejiang Texhong Textile Co., Ltd.

WIAIGERRAR

Jiangsu Century Texhong Textile
Co,, Ltd.

TRt ERIHEARDA

136

Place and date of
incorporation and kind
of legal entity
ARRIBER

AR EEERER

Tai Zhou, Mainland China,
20 October 1997,
limited liability company

hERM
—AAtETA=A
BREEAR

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
26 June 1998,
limited liability company

A
“AANERAZT7A
BREEAR

Taizhou, Mainland China,
15 January 2000,
limited liability company

Jinhua, Mainland China,
18 May 2000
limited liability company

hEGE
“ERTFRIATIA
EREFAA

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
6 June 2000
limited liabiliy company

N

A

226
2R

7R

== O =

NANH

A

ant | | B
pe=il]

Particulars of
issued share capital
operations or paid-in capital
TTERR ERIRAY
EELY HANBRARE

Principal activities
and place of

Manufacturing and USD193,750
sales of yarns and
grey fabrics in
Mainland China

B AESEREE
YERAR

19375057

Manufacturing and USD187,500
sales of yams, grey fabrics,
dyed cloth and dress
in Mainland China

PEAERERAE
Y8 AR

187500570

Manufacturing and sales USD2,625,000
of industrial-use textie
products and top-grade
blended-spinning
in Mainland China

B ARSERBET S
RORRREREYR

2,625,000% 7

Manufacturing and USD6,350,000
sales of industrial - use
textile products, top-
grade grey fabrics and
blended-spinning
in Mainland China

RREREREREETE
Bogm REhR
BYE

6,350,000% 70

Manufacturing and sales ~ USD10,200,000
of yarns, grey fabrics,
dyed cloth and dress;
processing of cotton
in Mainland China

B AESERHE
Y& A FRREE
NIk

10,200,000% 7

AN
e

B RS M EE

Interest Note

R Jif3
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
100% (i)
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Place and date of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and kind and place of issued share capital
of legal entity operations or paid-in capital
Name MR ISR TEERR EEARES, Interest Note
£ RERERERER EENY BARRAGHE 1R Wit
Indirectly held-
BRE-
Taizhou Century Texhong Textile Taizhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales USD13,000,000 100% (i)
Co., Ltd. 23 April 2002 of industrial-use textile
limited liability company products and top-grade
blended-spinning
in Mainland China
Tt R ERAR RN RERESEREE 13,000,000 70 100% (i
“EECEMAZT=H IXRORREAR
ERELAR RYR
Nantong Century Texhong Textile Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales USD3,850,000 100% (i)
Co,, Ltd. 7 June 2002 of yams, grey fabrics
limited liability company and dyed fabrics
in Mainland China
BEtERISEERAT eI RPEAERERHE 3,850,000 100% ()
-ET-%FRALA hi5 - EHRH
ERELAT
Xuzhou Century Texhong Textile Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales USD625,000 100% (i)
Co., Ltd. 13 January 2003, of top-grade yarns
limited liability company and cloth spinning
in Mainland China
Mt LRI BARAR PR RO BABSERHE 625,000 100% fi
ZRR=E-A1=EH BRYBRAREY R
EREAAR)
Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng Textile Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales USD4,200,000 100% (i)
Co,, Ltd. 12 May 2004 of yarns, grey fabrics,
limited liability company cloth and dyed fabrics
in Mainland China
AHRIRESEARAR RS RERESEREE 4,200,000 100% (i
“EEMERATCR i 7 - WHRA
ERELAR
Nantong Texhong Yinhai Industrial Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales USD3,500,000 100% (i)
Co., Ltd. 20 May 2004 of garment, textile
limited liability company knitting products and yams
in Mainland China
BRRIEEEXARAR hEEE RPEAERERHE 3,500,000%7C 100% (i
“ZEMFRACTH KK HREEEER
ERELAT e
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Name

&R

Indirectly held-
e

Place and date of
incorporation and kind
of legal entity
ARRIBER

AR EEERER

Xuzhou Texhong Times Textile Co., Ltd.  Xuzhou, Mainland China,

FHRIBRGSARAR

Texhong (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

X (78) REARAA

29 December 2004,
limited liability company

BERN
“EEMET-A=thA
BREAAA

Shanghai, Mainland China,
21 June 2005
Limited liability company
BE LS
ZEZRENAZT-A
BEREMAR

Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian Textile Co., Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China,

FNRIEBHERRAA

Taizhou Texhong Yintai Textile Co., Ltd.

FRISFGHARLT

Sunray Macao Commercial Offshore

Limited.
HERRRERRHS
ARALF

Texhong Textile (Hong Kong) Limited.

XIgk (B%) ARAF

138

30 March 2006
limited liability company

A
“FIp
B

=i

VEZA=1H

/N
LT

Taizhou, Mainland China,
26 May 2006
Limited liability company

HEE
“ETATEAZTAR
HRERELT

Macao, 19 December 2005
limited liability company

P
“ZZRETZATAR
BRELAT

Hong Kong, 11 May 2006
limited liability company

B

:sziﬁﬂ+ B
BRE

fER

Principal activities Particulars of
and place of issued share capital
operations or paid-in capital
TTERR RIRA
EEHY BARRAGHE
Manufacturing and sales USD15,000,000
of top-grade yams,
thread, grey fabrics,
textile knitting products,
and garments
in Mainland China
PEAERERHE 15,000,000% 70
BRYE 8 K
DEEREERRAR
Investment holding and USD30,000,000
trading of textile products
in Mainland China
REARR RN E K 30,000,000%7
BEfEED
Manufacturing top-grade ~ USD12,500,000
yams, thread,
grey fabrics, dresses,
in Mainland China
P AERERR 12,500,000 ¢
B & AmRiRE
Manufacturing top-grade USD6,500,000
garment and special
textile for construction
in Mainland China
RRE RS R R K 6,500,000%7
RS mI AR RE
Trading in Macao MOP$100,000
WEFES 100,000 %
Investment holding 10,000 ordinary
in Hong Kong share of HKD1
RERETRARR 10,000
SiREr
Lk

MRS

Interest

{11

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

B E

Note
Jif3



Name

R

Indirectly held-
BRE-

Changzhou Texhong Textile
Co., Ltd.

FHRISEERAR

Sunray Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

HiHES (%) ARAA

Texhong Vietnam Textile Joint Stock
Company (formerly known as
Texhong (Vietnam) Textile Limited)
A (43) HERHERAR
(AIRAY (W)
HRERAR)

Texhong Textile Nantong Ltd.

KIHHERARAA

Texhong Textile Nantong Investment
Limited
AIGREERERRAT

Texhong Texiile (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited
Kl (BE) BRERAR

Note (i): All subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China

Place and date of
incorporation and kind
of legal entity

MR ISR
RRRERERER

Changzhou, Mainland China

1 January 1979
limited liability company

hEEN
“NnE-A-R
RREMEAR

British Virgin Islands,
16 February 2005
Limited liability company
EERAES
“ESREZAHA
ERAfRAA

Vietnam, 24 October 2006
limited liability company

i
“STAEA AR
HRERAT

British Virgin Islands,
14 March 2007
limited liability company
ZERLEE
“ERLE-ATIA
ERELAT

Hong Kong, 6 November 2007

limited liability company
B

“ERHET-ARA

RREEAA

Hong Kong, 24 October 2007

limited liability company
B

“ERLETACTEA

RREEAA

are wholly owned foreign enterprises.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal activities
and place of
operations
IERHR
EENY

Manufacturing and
sales of textile,
decoration and garment
in Mainland China
PR RESERHE
ffaien B

Trading, investment and
corporate services
in Hong Kong
RERENE
RECRRTS

RER

Manufacturing of yam
in Vietnam

NEBsEY

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands

RERRLES
EfTIRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBRTRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBRTREARR

Hiat() -

A
A

Particulars of
issued share capital
or paid-in capital
BRTRAS
BANBRARE

RMB32,145,000

i
32,145,0007

10,000 ordinary
share of HKD1
10,0008
BRATLER

USD16,000,000

16,000,000 7T

USD50,000

50,0007

HKD100

10077

HKD100

10077

RAHEEERAT

T LFFR
AR 5 MY 5L
Interest Note
18 Vi3
100% (i)
100% (i)
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

PRAR B AREEMASZHTB L

AHREINEDRE -
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